
- 1 - 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER 2009, AT 6.00 P.M. 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 
 

MEMBERS: Councillors Mrs. R. L. Dent (Chairman), Mrs. C. J. Spencer (Vice-
Chairman), Dr. D. W. P. Booth JP, Miss D. H. Campbell JP, 
Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, D. Hancox, Ms. J. A. Marshall, 
D. McGrath, S. P. Shannon, Mrs. M. A. Sherrey JP, C. B. Taylor, 
L. J. Turner and P. J. Whittaker 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing 
Committee held on 18th May 2009 (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

4. Licensing Act 2003 Minor Variations Report (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

5. Sub-Committees of the Licensing Committee (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

6. Statement of Gambling Policy (Pages 15 - 32) 
 

7. Street Trading Consent (Pages 33 - 54) 
 

8. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  

 
 

K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
24th August 2009 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY, 18TH MAY 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors Dr. D. W. P. Booth JP, Miss D. H. Campbell JP, 
Mrs. R. L. Dent, D. Hancox, Ms. J. A. Marshall, D. McGrath, 
S. P. Shannon, Mrs. M. A. Sherrey JP, Mrs. C. J. Spencer,  
L. J. Turner, R. D. Smith and P. J. Whittaker 
 
Invitees: Inspector D. Shaw and PC J. Willetts  

  
Observers: Councillor P. M. McDonald 
 

 Officers: Mrs. S. Sellers, Mrs. S. Smith and Ms. P. Ross 
 
 

1/09 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Mrs. R. L. Dent be elected Chairman of the 
Committee for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

2/09 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Mrs C. J. Spencer be elected Vice-Chairman of 
the Committee for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

3/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths. 
 

4/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

5/09 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 23rd February 
2009 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

6/09 DESIGNATED PUBLIC PLACES ORDER - COFTON HACKETT  
 
Members were asked to consider an application from the County Councillor 
representing the Electoral Division for Beacon to introduce a Designated 
Public Places Order which would prevent, when requested, the consumption 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Licensing Committee 
18th May 2009 

 

of alcohol in the Cofton Hackett area in an attempt to reduce anti-social 
behaviour and drinking in these public places. 
 
The report provided updates and additional evidence from West Mercia 
Constabulary, Neighbourhood Watch, PACT Meetings and Birmingham City 
Council, as requested by the Committee at its meeting held on 23rd February 
2009 when the matter had been previously considered. 
 
The Principal Licensing Officer introduced the report which also detailed the  
published Home Office Guidance relating to Designated Public Places Orders 
(DPPOs) for Local Authorities in England and Wales.  The Committee was 
informed that the document set out guidance for local authorities on the issue 
of evidence required to justify the making of a DPPO as follows: 
 
“The evidence you will require for a DPPO is that there is an alcohol related 
nuisance or annoyance to the public in the proposed area/s.  You should 
make an assessment as to the likelihood that the problem will continue unless 
these powers are adopted.  In addition, you must have a belief that the 
problem could be remedied by the use of these powers.  Evidence should be 
based not just on information you have obtained, but also from the police and 
members of the local community who have reported incidents of alcohol-
related anti-social behavior or disorder.  Evidence of alcohol-related nuisance 
could for example include litter related to the consumption of alcohol (e.g. 
bottles and cans) as well as police information and residents’ complaints.” 
 
The Chairman invited Members to put any relevant questions to the Principal 
Licensing Officer.  In response, the Principal Licensing Officer asked Members 
to note that no DPPO application had been granted without the agreement 
and support of the police and that no response had been received from Cofton 
Hackett Parish Council. 
 
The Chairman invited Members to put any relevant questions to Inspector D. 
Shaw and PC J. Willetts, West Mercia Constabulary.  In response, Inspector 
Shaw informed Members that, currently, there had been insufficient evidence 
and data to support the introduction of a DPPO and that not all anti-social 
behaviour reported in the area concerned was alcohol related.  PC Willetts 
explained that Cofton Hackett Neighbourhood Watch had distributed 800 
leaflets asking local residents for their views on a Designated Public Places 
Order for the Cofton Hackett area with 19 responses being received.  PC 
Willetts also asked Members to note that the issue had remained as one of the 
top 3 PACT (Partners and Communities Together) priorities due to it being 
unresolved and no agreement being reached. 
 
At the Chairman’s discretion, Councillor P. M. McDonald, County Councillor 
representing the Electoral Division for Beacon, addressed the Committee and 
spoke in favour of introducing a DPPO in this area.  In doing so, he stated that 
it had been raised as a 'top issue' during PACT (Partners and Communities 
Together) meetings and, in addition, over four hundred people had been 
contacted, as stated during the Licensing Committee meeting held on 23rd 
February 2009. 
 

Page 2



Licensing Committee 
18th May 2009 

 

Following further discussion and at the suggestion of Officers from West 
Mercia Constabulary it was agreed that the Local Policing Team conduct a 
‘face-to-face’ survey in the area surrounding the proposed DPPO within the 
next 4 weeks and provide the results of the survey to the Principal Licensing 
Officer. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the request for the creation of a Designated Public Places Order in 

the Cofton Hackett area, Bromsgrove be deferred until the next meeting 
of the Licensing Committee; and 

(b) that the Principal Licensing Officer be tasked to issue a report on the 
results of the West Mercia Constabulary ‘Face to Face’ survey to the 
next meeting of the Licensing Committee. 

 
7/09 DPPO - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS  

 
Members were asked to consider a report on proposals to introduce a new 
procedure for public speaking at meetings of the Licensing Committee in 
respect of applications for Designated Public Places Orders. 
 
Members were informed that, currently, there was no procedure to enable 
public speaking at meetings of the Licensing Committee at which a DPPO was 
to be considered.  Members had requested that officers consider whether a 
procedure could be introduced in order to enable police officers, residents or 
any other consultees to speak at the Licensing Committee meetings to give 
relevant evidence in order to assist the Committee in making an informed 
decision. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the introduction of public speaking at meetings of the Licensing 

Committee on applications for Designated Public Places Orders be 
agreed, and 
(i) that the police be requested to attend meetings of the Committee 

at which an application for a DPPO is to be considered; 
(ii) that the person, body or organisation applying for the DPPO be 

invited to ask one or more individuals who live or work in the 
area which the DPPO is proposed to cover and who may have 
been directly affected by alcohol-related nuisance or annoyance 
to attend and address the Committee meeting and answer any 
questions the Committee may have; 

(iii) that any parish council consulted as part of the consultation 
process be invited to attend and address the Committee meeting 
to give evidence of alcohol-related nuisance or annoyance and 
answer any questions the Committee may have; 

(iv) that the holder of any premises licence, club premises certificate 
or Temporary Event Notices (TENs) in the area which may be 
affected by the DPPO be invited to attend and address the 
Committee on the effect a DPPO may have on the licensed 
premises or on the TEN and to answer any questions the 
Committee may have; 

Page 3



Licensing Committee 
18th May 2009 

 

(v) that the applicant be allowed to address the Committee for 10 
minutes to explain the reasons for the application; 

(vi) that 10 minutes be allocated to all individuals who live or work in 
the area which the DPPO is proposed to cover and who have 
been directly affected by alcohol-related nuisance or annoyance 
(or a spokesman on their behalf) who wish to address the 
Committee - if more than one individual wishes to address the 
Committee the time must be allocated between them; 

(vii) that 10 minutes be allocated to the police to address the 
Committee; 

(viii) that 10 minutes be allocated to all parish councils wishing to 
address the Committee - if more than one wishes to address the 
Committee, the time should be allocated between them; 

(ix) that 10 minutes be allocated to the holders of any premises 
licenses, club certificates or TENs who wish to the address the 
Committee - if more than one individual wishes to address the 
Committee the time should be allocated between them; 

(x) that the Chairman be given a discretion to extend these times 
with the consent of the Committee; 

(xi) that the Committee be entitled to ask questions of any person, 
body or organisation giving evidence and, for the avoidance of 
doubt, these questions should not form part of the allocated 10 
minutes; 

(xii) that the Committee delegate authority to the Senior Solicitor, in 
consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 
Committee, to prepare written guidance and a hearing 
procedure; and 

(b) that the Committee should not reconsider an application for a DPPO for 
the same or substantially the same area as a previous unsuccessful 
application for at least 12 months from the date of the previous 
application unless the Committee is satisfied that circumstances have 
substantially changed since the matter was previously considered. 

 
The meeting closed at 6.54 p.m. 

 
 

Chairman 

Page 4



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

7TH SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
 
LICENSING ACT 2003 MINOR VARIATIONS – DELEGATED AUTHORITY 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Peter Whittaker 
Responsible Head of Service Dave Hammond, Head of Planning & 

Environment Services 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report updates members on the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 

Licences and Club Premises Certificates) (Miscellaneous Amendments) 
Regulations 2009 which came into force on 29 July 2009 and recommends 
that, as a result of these Regulations, the Scheme of Delegation be revised. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 

It is recommended that: 
 

2.1 Members note the new process by which minor variations to Premises 
Licences and Club Premises Certificates can be determined; and 

 
2.2 Authority be delegated to the Head of Planning & Environment Services to 

determine applications for minor variations to Premises Licences and Club 
Premises Certificates as defined by the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 
Licences and Club Premises Certificates) (Miscellaneous Amendments) 
Regulations 2009. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Until now, a Premises Licence holder who wished to make a minor 

amendment to a Premises Licence was required, in most cases, to make an 
application to vary the licence, however minor the proposed amendment.  
This follows a very similar procedure to that that required for an application 
for a new Premises Licence and, in the case of very minor amendments, 
was found to be disproportionately cumbersome and costly.   

 
3.2 The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises 

Certificates) (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2009 (“the 
Regulations”) now provide that minor variations that do not impact adversely 
on the licensing objectives can be made under a simplified ‘minor variations’ 
process. Under this process: 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 

• the applicant is not required to advertise the variation in a newspaper 
or circular or copy it to responsible authorities but must display it in a 
specified form for a period of ten working days;   

• on receipt of an application, the licensing authority must consider 
whether the variation could impact adversely on the licensing 
objectives;   

• in considering the application, the licensing authority must consult 
relevant responsible authorities if there is any doubt about the impact 
of the variation on the licensing objectives and they need specialist 
advice, and take their views into account in reaching a decision, but in 
many cases the licensing authority may be able to make a decision 
without consultation;   

• interested parties may make representations within 10 working days 
and these must be taken into account by the licensing authority; and  

• the licensing authority must wait until the 10 working day period has 
elapsed before determining the application, but must do so at the latest 
within 15 working days, and the licensing authority may either:  

Ø grant the minor variation; or,  
Ø  refuse the application.  

  
3.3 Minor variations will generally fall into four categories:  

• minor changes to the structure or layout of a premises;  
• small adjustments to licensing hours;  
• the removal of out of date, irrelevant or unenforceable conditions or 

addition of volunteered conditions; and  
• the addition of certain licensable activities.  

In all cases the overall test is whether the proposed variation could impact 
adversely on any of the four licensing objectives.  

 
3.4 Detailed guidance has been produced by the Department of Culture, Media 

and Sport to assist local authorities in deciding these applications, including 
guidance on what might constitute a minor variation.  This guidance also 
recommends that authority be delegated to an appropriate officer to 
determine applications for minor variations, and it is recommended in this 
report that such authority be delegated to the Head of Planning & 
Environment Services. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Applications for Premises Licences are made in accordance with the 

requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Licensing Act 2003 
(Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 and 
2009.   

 

Page 6



 

5.2 Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires licensing authorities to take 
into account any guidance issued by the Secretary of State when making 
decisions, and the s182 guidance has been updated to include guidance on 
the minor variations process introduced by the Regulations. 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1    N/a 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

No significant risks arising form this report have been identified, but any 
minor risks arising are being managed as follows:  
 
 

Risk Register: Planning & Environment Services 
Key Objective Ref No: 8   
Key Objective: Effective, efficient and legally compliant Licensing 
Service 

  
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  The recommendations will ensure that applications for minor variations can 

be taken efficiently and within the required timescales without the need to 
convene emergency meetings of the Licensing Sub-Committee.   

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 None   
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues 
 

None  

Personnel Implications 
 

None  

Governance/Performance Management 
 

None  

Community Safety  including Section 17 of 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 

None  

Policy 
 

None  

Environmental  
 

None  

Page 7



 

 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

No 

Executive Director - Services 
 

No 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards  
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 None 
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   John Davies (on behalf of Sharon Smith) 
E Mail:  j.davies@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881473 

Page 8



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

7TH SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 
SUB-COMMITTEES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE  
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report suggests changes to the Licensing Committee’s sub-committee 

structure. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
 It is recommended that: 
 
2.1 The Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee be restructured and renamed with 

extended terms of reference. 
 
2.2 Two fixed membership, politically balanced sub-committees be established 

with terms of reference as follows:  “To determine applications relating to:  
• private hire and hackney carriage driver, operator and vehicle 

licensing; 
• street trading consents; 
• sex shop applications; 
• pet shop licences; 
• animal boarding licences; 
• riding establishment licences; and 
• charitable collections” 

to be called the Licensing (Miscellaneous) Sub-Committees A and B, to be 
chaired by the Chairman of the Licensing Committee (or the Vice Chairman 
in his or her absence), to sit in strict rotation.  Substitutes will be permitted 
provided they have met the training requirements determined by the 
Member Development Steering Group.   

 
2.3 Public speaking be permitted at such Sub-Committee meetings, and 

authority be delegated to the Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic 
Services in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 
Licensing Committee to determine the procedure. 

 
2.4 The terms of reference for the Licensing Sub-Committee be revised as 

follows:  “To consider and determine applications and hearings arising from 
the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005.” 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Licensing Committee is responsible for the exercise of all powers and 

duties of the Council in licensing and for enforcement of licensing 
requirements.  Some of those functions have been delegated by the 
Licensing Committee to its 2 sub-committees, the Licensing Sub-Committee 
and the Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee, and the functions delegated to the 
sub-committees relate to determination of certain types of applications 
relating to individuals or particular premises.  However, at present there is 
an anomaly in that some applications relating to individuals or individual 
premises continue to be determined by the parent committee. 

 
3.2 This anomaly has been brought to light in the context of the review of the 

street trading policy.  It is considered likely that in future as a result of the 
proposed change in policy there will be substantially more applications for 
street licensing consents which will need to be determined, and convening 
meetings of the parent committee for such applications may prove to be 
cumbersome.  Members are therefore requested to consider if such 
applications (and indeed any other applications currently determined by the 
parent committee) might be more appropriately dealt with by a sub-
committee rather than by the parent committee.  This would then leave the 
parent Licensing Committee which comprises 13 members with 
responsibility for strategy and policy and wider issues such as Designated 
Public Places Orders. 

 
3.3 The current situation is a follows. 
 
3.4 The Licensing Act 2003 requires the Council to have a Licensing Sub-

Committee to determine certain applications and other types of hearing 
under the Licensing Act 2003 (such as applications for Premises Licences if 
relevant representations are received, or reviews of Premises Licences) in 
accordance with procedures set out in Regulations made under that Act.  In 
addition, it is required to determine certain applications and other types of 
hearing under the Gambling Act 2005, again in accordance with procedures 
set out in Regulations made under that Act. This sub-committee is excluded 
from the usual rule that sub-committees must be politically balanced, and 
the Regulations provide that its membership may not exceed 3. The 
Licensing Sub-Committee does not deal with any other types of licensing 
applications.   

 
3.5 The Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee carries out the functions of the 

Licensing Committee in determining applications relating to private hire and 
hackney carriage driver, operator and vehicle licensing, and enforcement of 
such licensing.  It comprises 5 members of the Licensing Committee, is 
required to be politically balanced and is chaired by either the Chairman or 
Vice-Chairman of the parent committee. 

 
3.6 Other types of licensing applications relating to street trading consents, sex 

shop, pet shop, animal boarding, riding establishment licences and 

Page 10



 

charitable collections, are currently referred to the parent Licensing 
Committee. 

 
3.7 Members are requested to consider whether it would be more appropriate 

for the Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee to be restructured and renamed, with 
revised terms of reference to enable it to determine applications relating to: 

• private hire and hackney carriage driver, operator and vehicle 
licensing; 

• street trading consents; 
• sex shop applications; 
• pet shop licences; 
• animal boarding licences; 
• riding establishment licences; and 
• charitable collections. 

It is suggested that there would be 2 fixed membership, politically balanced 
sub-committees, each chaired by the Chairman (or in his or her absence the 
Vice-Chairman) of the Licensing Committee which would sit strictly in 
rotation to consider such applications.  Substitutes would be allowed 
provided they have met the training requirements determined by the 
Member Development Steering Group.  The suggestion of fixed 
membership of 2 sub-committees which will hear applications on a strict 
rotation basis is to ensure that all members are given the same number of 
opportunities to hear such applications. 

 
3.8 It is suggested that this sub-committee might be more called the Licensing 

(Miscellaneous) Sub-Committee but members may consider another name 
more appropriate.  The same public speaking rights would apply as are 
currently afforded in respect of other licensing matters, and it is 
recommended that authority be delegated to the Head of Legal, Equalities & 
Democratic Services in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
of the Licensing Committee to draft the public speaking rules appropriately. 

 
3.9 It is not recommended that applications of the type referred to in paragraph 

3.6 are referred to the current Licensing Sub-Committee which is constituted 
in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and the 
procedures of which are set out in Regulations.  

 
3.10 It is not proposed that there should be any changes to the Licensing Sub-

Committee.  However, the terms of reference for that sub-committee need 
to be updated to reflect the fact that it is responsible for dealing with 
applications and hearings arising from the Gambling Act 2005, and so 
members are requested to approve that revision to its terms of reference. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 11



 

5.1 Section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended gives local 
authorities the power to appoint committees, and to committees to appoint 
sub-committees. 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1    N/a 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.2  No significant risks arising form this report have been identified, but any 

minor risks arising are being managed as follows:  
 
 

Risk Register: Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services  
Key Objective Ref No: 2   

Key Objective: Effective ethical governance    
  

8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The recommendations will have little impact on customers.   
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 None   
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues 
 

None  

Personnel Implications 
 

None  

Governance/Performance Management 
 

None  

Community Safety  including Section 17 of 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 

None  

Policy 
 

None  

Environmental  
 

None  

 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder No 

Page 12



 

 
Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

No 

Executive Director - Services 
 

No 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards  
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 None 
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Debbie Warren (on behalf of Claire Felton) 
E Mail:  d.warren@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881609 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
7TH SEPTEMBER 2009 

 
 
STATEMENT OF GAMBLING POLICY 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr. Peter Whittaker 
Responsible Head of Service David Hammond 
  
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report seeks members’ views on the draft revised Statement of 

Gambling Policy. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That, subject to any responses received during the consultation period, the 

Committee recommends to Council that the revised Statement of Gambling 
Policy be adopted. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Gambling Act 2005 requires the Council to carry out a review of its 

Statement of Gambling Policy, which is used to determine all applications 
made under the terms of the Act, every three years.   

 
3.2 Further to its initial adoption in January 2007, it is now necessary to carry 

out a review of the current document by consulting with all interested 
parties, ensuring that it continues to reflect the local balance between the 
commercial interests of the licensed trade and the communities they serve 
and impact upon.  The consultation period commenced on 29th June and is 
scheduled to close on 21st September 2009. 

 
3.3 Attached is a copy of the draft revised Policy document, which has been 

updated to reflect the revised Guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission.  The Council has also worked with the other Council’s in the 
County in reviewing this policy to produce a joint policy so that a consistent 
approach across the County is taken, and the draft revised Policy reflects 
that joint approach. 

 
3.4 During the consultation period, no comments have been received from 

interested parties to date. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



 

3.5 Once the consultation period has closed, any responses will be reported to 
Cabinet and Council where they will be evaluated in conjunction with the 
other district Councils in the County and incorporated, were necessary, into 
the revised policy. 

 
3.6 The policy document will be submitted to Cabinet on 4th November 2009 

which is expected to make its recommendations to Council at its meeting on 
18th November 2009. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications. 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The Council’s Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services Department have 

been consulted on the proposed Policy and their comments have been 
incorporated. 

 
5.2 Section 349 of the Act requires all licensing authorities to prepare and 

publish a statement o the principles that they propose to apply in exercising 
their functions under the Act during the three year period to which the policy 
applies. 

 
5.3 The Statement of Policy will last for a maximum of three years, but can be 

review and revised by the authority at any time.  The statement must be 
produced following consultation with those bodies and persons set out in 
subsection (3) of section 349 of the Act.  An order of the Secretary of State 
means that licensing authorities have to publish their second statement of 
policy by 14th January 2010. 

 
5.4 In addition to the requirements set out by the regulations, the Guidance 

issued by the Gambling Commission set out certain information that the 
Commission considers should be included in all licensing authority 
Statements of Policy. 

 
5.5 Before publishing a revision of the policy, the regulations require authorities 

to publish a notice of their intention to publish a revised statement of policy 
in a local newspaper and on the Council’s website at least four weeks 
before it takes effect. 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  These guidelines contribute to the Council’s objectives “Sense of community 

and well being” and “Improvement”. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The main risk associated with the detail included in this report is: 

Page 16



 

 
§ To ensure that the Council has effective policies in place to assist in 
decision-making and to maintain the consistency of any decisions made. 

 
7.2 This risk is being managed as follows: 
 

Risk Register: Planning and Environment Services 
Key Objective Ref No. 7 
Key Objective: Effective, efficient and legally compliant Licensing Service 

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  The draft revised policy will be made available on the Council’s website. 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken. 
   
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no value for money implications. 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues 
None 
Personnel Implications 
None 
Governance/Performance Management 
None 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 
None 
Policy 
 
Environmental  
None 

 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (Partnerships and Projects)  
 

No 

Executive Director (Services) 
 

No 

Assistant Chief Executive No 

Page 17



 

 
Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards are affected. 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A Draft Revised Statement of Gambling Policy 
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Revised Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Sharon Smith  
E Mail:  sharon.smith@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881626 
 
 
 

Page 18



Page 1 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

 

Page 19



Page 2 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

 
 

Contents           Page 
 
Introduction          2  
 
Gambling Act 2005        3 
 
General Statement of Principles      3 
 
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder 4 
 
Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way   5 
 
Protecting children and vulnerable people from gambling  5 
 
Premises licences         6 
 
Responsible Authorities        7 
 
Interested Parties         8 
 
Licence conditions        9  
 
Gaming Machines         9 
 
Temporary Use Notices        10 
  
Occasional Use Notices        10 
 
Lotteries          10 
 
Exchange of Information        11 
 
Enforcement         11 
 
Reviews          12 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A Map of the District of Bromsgrove 
 
Appendix B List of Consultees 
 

Page 20



Page 3 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

 
Statement of Principles – Gambling Act 2005    
 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Bromsgrove District Council is situated in the County of Worcestershire, which 
contains six District Councils in total.  The Council area has a population of 
approximately 88,000 and in terms of area it covers approximately 84 square 
miles.  The Council area is mainly rural in character (90% of the area is classed 
as Green Belt) with two central urban areas of Bromsgrove Town and Rubery.  
Whilst it is only 14 miles from central Birmingham, the Clent and Lickey Hills 
provide an important dividing line between the industrial Midlands and the rural 
landscape of North Worcestershire.  A map showing the extent of the Council’s 
boundary is attached at Appendix ‘A’.   

 

1.2 Bromsgrove District Council’s overall vision is “an attractive, clean, healthy, safe 
and prosperous District where an improving quality of life is enjoyed equally by 
all.”  This statement accords with that vision in seeking to promote the licensing 
objectives set out in the Act, which are central to the regulatory regime created 
by the Act. These are: 

• Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 

• Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and 

• Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling. 

1.3 We have produced this statement as required by Section 349 of the Gambling 
Act 2005 (referred to in this statement as “the Act”) and having had regard to the 
Gambling Commission’s formal guidance issued under Section 25 of the Act, the 
licensing objectives and to the views of those that we have consulted.  We 
consulted widely upon this statement before finalising and publishing.  The list of 
those persons and organisations consulted is appended.  The consultation took 
place between July and September 2009 in line with HM Government Code of 
Practice on Consultation.  A full list of comments made and considered by the 
Council is available at www.bromsgrove.gov.uk.  The policy was approved at a 
meeting of the Full Council on 18th November 2009.  Should you have any 
comments as regards this policy statement please send them via email or letter 
to: licensing@bromsgrove.gov.uk  

This statement must be published at least every three years.  The statement may 
also be reviewed from ‘time to time’ and any amended parts re-consulted upon. 

1.4 We intend that this document should provide information and guidance on the 
general approach that we will take to licensing.  A series of advice sheets with 
more specific guidance is available from our web site or will be sent on request; 
advice tailored to individuals is available by phone or to personal callers.   

1.5 Nothing in this policy takes away the right of any person to make an application 
under the Act and to have that application considered on its merits; nor does it 
undermine the right of any person to object to an application or to seek a review 
of a licence where the law provides that they may do so.  Applications will be 
considered in line with our statement of general principles, below. 

Page 21



Page 4 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

2.0 Gambling Act 2005 

2.1 This policy reflects our key priorities to be an efficient and effective Council; to 
provide a clean, safe and attractive environment; to foster and sustain a strong 
and expanding economy; to provide sustainable culture and leisure 
opportunities; and to work with the public and our partners. 

 
2.2 The Act provides for gambling to be authorised in a number of different ways.  

Our main functions are to: 
• licence premises for gambling activities, including the issue of provisional 

statements, 
• regulate and grant permits for gambling and gaming machines in clubs, 

including commercial clubs, 
• regulate gaming and gaming machines in alcohol licensed premises, 
• grant permits to family entertainment centres for the use of certain lower 

stake gaming machines, 
• grant permits for prize gaming, 
• receive and endorse notices given for the temporary use notices, 
• receive occasional use notices for betting at tracks,  
• register small societies lotteries, 
• Maintain public registers, and 
• Provide information to the Gambling Commission on issued licences. 

 
2.3 The Gambling Commission regulates remote gambling and issues personal and 

operating licences for premises.  Spread betting is regulated by the Financial 
Services Authority.  The “National Lottery” is regulated by the National Lottery 
Commission. 

 
3.0 Authorised Activities 
 
3.1 ‘Gambling’ is defined in the Act as gaming, betting, or taking part in a lottery. 
 

• gaming means playing a game of chance for a prize, 
• betting means making or accepting a bet on the outcome of a race, 

competition, or any other event; the likelihood of anything occurring or not 
occurring; or whether anything is true or not, and 

• a lottery is an arrangement where persons are required to pay in order to 
take part in an arrangement whereby one or more prizes are allocated by 
a process which relies wholly on chance. 

 
4.0 General Statement of Principles 
 
4.1 In carrying out our licensing functions in accordance with the Act, particularly 

with regard to premises licences, we will generally aim to permit the use of 
premises for gambling as long as it is considered to be :- 

• in accordance with any relevant Codes of Practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission 

• in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission 

• in accordance with this Statement of Principles, and 
• reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 

 

Page 22



Page 5 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

4.2 We will not seek to use the Act to resolve matters that are better dealt with by 
other legislation.   Licensing is not the primary mechanism for general control of 
nuisance and the antisocial behaviour of people once they are away from 
licensed premises. 

 
4.3 We will ensure that in dealing with applications under the Act we follow the 

required procedures, and only take into account issues that are relevant.  
Specifically we will not have regard to “demand” when considering applications 
for gambling premises; nor will we consider the suitability of applicants for 
premises licences (which is a matter for the Gambling Commission).  We will not 
reject an application on moral grounds.  If we do decide to reject an application, 
we will make known our reasons for doing so. 

 
4.4 Our current Council Constitution (including the scheme of delegation) details the 

way that we will discharge our functions under this Act.  Details are available 
from the Licensing Department.  

 
4.5 Where an application is for a new premises licence, the responsible authorities 

may visit to check that gambling facilities meet all necessary legal requirements. 
 
4.6 Where there are no representations (objections), licences and permissions will 

be granted subject only to any appropriate mandatory conditions (Section 167 of 
the Act) and any conditions having at least the effect of appropriate default 
conditions made under Section 168. 

 
4.7 If there are objections that can't be resolved informally, or we intend to impose 

extra conditions, we will hold a public hearing at which our licensing sub-
committee will hear evidence and make a decision in accordance with the Act. 

4.8 This statement is not intended to override the right of any person to make an 
application under the Act, and to have that application considered on its merits.  
Equally, this Statement of Principles is not intended to undermine the right of any 
person to make representations about an application or to seek a review of a 
licence where provision has been made for them to do so. 

 
5.0 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder 
 
5.1 The Gambling Commission takes the leading role in preventing gambling from 

being a source of crime, and maintains rigorous licensing procedures aiming to 
prevent criminals from providing facilities for gambling.  Applicants need an 
operating licence from the Commission before we will issue a licence to use 
premises for gambling. 

 
5.2 In view that we will not issue a premises licence to someone who does not hold 

an operator’s licence, we are not generally concerned with the suitability of an 
applicant.  Where concerns about a person’s suitability arise we will bring those 
concerns to the attention of the Commission.  

 
5.3 If an application for a licence or permit is received in relation to premises which 

are in an area noted for particular problems with organised crime, we will, in 
consultation with the Police and other relevant authorities, consider whether 
specific controls need to be applied to prevent those premises from being a 
source of crime. This could include a requirement for SIA registered door 
supervisors.  

Page 23



Page 6 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

 
5.4 Disorder will only be considered under this Act if it amounts to activity which is 

more serious and disruptive than mere nuisance, and where it can be shown that 
gambling is the source of that disorder.  A disturbance might be serious enough 
to constitute disorder if police assistance was required to deal with it; we will then 
consider how threatening the behaviour was to those who could see or hear it, 
and whether those people live sufficiently close to be affected or have business 
interests that might be affected. 

 
5.5 “Disorder” is generally a matter for the Police; we will not use this Act to deal with 

general nuisance issues, for example, parking problems, which can be better 
dealt with using alternative powers. 

 
5.6 When making decisions relating to disorder, we will give due weight to 

comments made by the police. 
 
6.0 Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
 
6.1 The Gambling Commission does not expect local authorities to become 

concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.  The 
Commission, through the operating and personal licensing regime, will regulate 
the management of the gambling business and the suitability and actions of an 
individual.   

 
6.2 Because betting track operators do not need an operating licence from the 

Commission we may, in certain circumstances, require conditions of licence 
relating to the suitability of the environment in which betting takes place. 

 
 
7.0 Protecting children and vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited 

by gambling 
 
7.1 The intention of the Act is that children and young persons should not be allowed 

to gamble, and should be prevented from entering those gambling premises 
which are ‘adult-only’ environments. 

 
7.2 Codes of Practice, including advice about access by children and young persons 

may be published by the Gambling Commission for specific kinds of premises.  
Applicants will be expected to heed this advice where applicable.  

 
7.3 We expect steps to be taken to prevent children from taking part in, or being in 

close proximity to, gambling.  This may include restrictions on advertising to 
ensure that gambling products are not aimed at children, nor advertised in such 
a way that makes them particularly attractive to children.   

 
7.4 When determining a premises licence or permit we will consider whether any 

additional measures are necessary to protect children, such as the supervision 
of entrances, the segregation of gambling from areas frequented by children and 
the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific premises like 
pubs, clubs and betting tracks.  

 
7.5 In seeking to protect vulnerable people we will include people who gamble more 

than they want to, people who gamble beyond their means, and people who may 

Page 24



Page 7 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling, perhaps 
due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.  

 
7.6 We will always treat each case on its own individual merits and when 

considering whether specific measures are required to protect children and other 
vulnerable people will balance these considerations against the overall principle 
of aiming to permit the use of premises for gambling. 

 
 
8.0 Premises licences 
 
8.1 A premises licence can authorise the provision of facilities at the following : 

• casino premises 
• bingo premises 
• betting premises, including betting tracks 
• adult gaming centres 
• family entertainment centres 

 
8.2 Premises can be ‘any place’ but the Act generally prevents more than one 

premises licence applying to any one place.  A single building could be subject to 
more than one premises licence provided they are for different parts of the 
building and those parts can be reasonably regarded as being separate 
‘premises’. 

 
8.3 This will allow large, multiple unit premises such as tracks, shopping malls or 

service stations to obtain discrete premises licences, with appropriate 
safeguards in place.  We will pay particular attention if there are issues about 
sub-divisions of a single building or plot and mandatory conditions relating to 
access between premises are observed.  We will not consider that areas of a 
building that are artificially or temporarily separated, for example by ropes or 
moveable partition, can properly be regarded as different premises.  Whether 
different parts of a building can properly be regarded as being separate premises 
will depend on the individual circumstances of the case. 

 
8.4 A particular requirement might be for entrances and exits from parts of a building 

covered by one or more licences to be separate and identifiable so that the 
separation of the premises is not compromised and people are not allowed to 
‘drift’ accidentally into a gambling area.  It should normally be possible to access 
the premises without going through another licensed premises or premises with 
a permit.  We would also expect customers to be able to participate in the activity 
named on the premises licence. 

 
8.5 The Secretary of State has appointed an independent Casino Advisory Panel to 

advise the Government on the areas in which small and/or large casinos may 
be located.  The District of Bromsgrove has not been identified as a suitable 
location for a casino, consequently we will be prevented from granting a Casino 
Premises Licence.   

 
8.6 We will not turn down applications for premises licences where relevant 

objections can be dealt with through the use of licence conditions. 
 

Page 25



Page 8 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

8.7 Other than an application for a betting premises licence for a track, we are not 
able to issue a premises licence unless the applicant holds the relevant 
operating licence from the Gambling Commission. 

 
8.8 When considering applications for premises licences we will not take into 

account either the expected ‘demand’ for facilities or the likelihood of planning 
permission or building regulation approval being granted, as well as ‘moral’ 
objections to gambling.  Equally, the grant of a premises licence would not 
prejudice or prevent any action that may be appropriate under the law relating 
to planning or building regulations. 

 
8.9 We are aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the 

location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives 
are relevant to our decision-making.  Should any specific policy be decided 
upon as regards areas where gambling premises should not be located, this 
statement will be updated. 

 
8.10 We will only issue a premises licence once we are satisfied that the premises is 

ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future, consistent with the 
scale of building or alterations required.  If the construction of a premises is not 
yet complete, or if they need alteration, or the applicant does not yet have a 
right to occupy them, then an application for a provisional statement should be 
made. 

 
8.11 We will apply a two stage consideration process if there is outstanding 

construction or alteration works at the premises: 
§ should the premises be permitted to be used for gambling; 
§ can appropriate conditions be imposed to cater for the situation that the 

premises is not yet in the state in which they should be before gambling 
takes place. 

 
8.12 We are entitled to decide whether or not it is appropriate to grant a licence 

subject to conditions. 
 
8.13 Applicants for premises licences are encouraged to propose any prohibitions or 

restrictions of their own in circumstances where it is felt that the presence of 
children would be undesirable or inappropriate. 

 
8.14 We will maintain a public register of Premises Licence applications received 

which may be viewed at the Council Offices during normal office hours which 
are generally Monday – Friday 9am until 5pm. 

 
9.0 Responsible authorities 
 
9.1 Responsible authorities are identified in the legislation, and have to be notified 

about licence applications so that they can identify any risks.  The responsible 
authorities that we recognise are listed below, contact details for each of the 
responsible authorities identified are available on our website 
www.bromsgrove.gov.uk, and will be sent on request. 

• The Gambling Commission 
• The Chief of Police for the 

area 
• Fire & Rescue Service 

• Bromsgrove District Council 
Planning Department 

• Bromsgrove District Council 
Environmental Services 
Department 

Page 26



Page 9 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

• Worcestershire Safeguarding 
Children Board 

• HM Revenue and Customs 

• Bromsgrove District Council Licensing Department 
• Any other bodies identified in Regulation by the Secretary of State, 
• For vessels, the Environment Agency, British Waterways Board, Secretary 

of State. 
 
9.2 Any concerns expressed by a Responsible Authority cannot be taken into 

account unless they are relevant to the application itself and the licensing 
objectives.  However, each representation will be considered on its own 
individual merits. 

 
10.0 Interested Parties 
 
10.1 An interested party is someone who : 

• lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities, or 

• has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities, or 
• represents persons in either of the two groups above.   

 
10.2 We will generally require written evidence that a person/body ‘represents’ 

someone who either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be 
affected by the authorised activities and/or has business interests that might be 
affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from one of these persons, 
requesting the representations is sufficient.  Whilst this may not apply to those 
elected ward members or MP or Parish Councillors, those persons should be 
aware of the need to represent the whole of the community that they represent 
and not just the vocal ‘minority’. 

 
10.3 In determining whether someone lives sufficiently close to a particular premises 

so as to be affected, we will take into account, among other things : 

• the size of the premises  
• the nature of the premises 
• the distance of the premises from the person making the representation 
• the nature of the complainant 
• the potential impact of the premises  

 
10.4 In determining whether a person has a business interest which could be 

affected the Council will consider, among other things : 

• the size of the premises 
• the catchment area of the premises, and 
• whether the person making the representation has business interests in the 

catchment area that might be affected 
 
10.5 If an existing gambling business makes a representation that it is going to be 

affected by another gambling business starting up in the area, we would not 
consider this, in the absence of other evidence, as a relevant representation as 
it does not relate to the licensing objectives and instead relates to demand or 
competition. 

 

Page 27



Page 10 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

10.6 We may consider a representation to be either frivolous or vexatious, and reject 
it. This will generally be a matter of fact given the circumstances of each 
individual case but, before coming to a decision we will normally consider : 

• who is making the representation and whether there is a history of making 
representations that are not relevant, 

• whether it raises an issue relevant to the licensing objectives, or 
• whether it raises issues specifically to do with the premises which are the 

subject of the application. 
 
11.0 Licence conditions 

11.1 In particular cases we may find it necessary to impose conditions beyond 
appropriate mandatory and default conditions.  Any such conditions will be 
relevant to the need to make the building suitable for use as a gambling facility; 
directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; fairly and 
reasonably related to the scale and type of premises and reasonable in all other 
respects.  We will not have recourse to a pool of standard conditions. 

 
11.2 We will also ensure that where category C or above machines that are on offer 

in premises to which children are admitted are located in an area of the 
premises which is separated by a physical barrier to prevent access other than 
through a designated entrance; the designated area is supervised and 
observed by staff or the licence holder. 

 
11.3 Examples of conditions which are likely to be attached in certain circumstances 

include those relating to opening hours, segregation of gambling from non-
gambling areas frequented by children, SIA licensed door supervisors, 
appropriate signage for adult only areas, age limits, or keeping children and 
young persons away from gaming machines.  We will also expect the applicant 
to offer their own suggestions as to way in which the licensing objectives can be 
promoted effectively. 

 
11.4 We will not seek to control those matters specified in the Act with conditions: 

• which make it impossible to comply with an operating licence condition 
imposed by the Gambling Commission, 

• relating to gaming machine categories or method of operation, 
• which specify that membership of a club or other body is required, or 
• in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes. 

 
11.5 Duplication with other statutory or regulatory regimes will be avoided as far as 

possible.  The need for conditions will be assessed on the specific merits of 
each application. 

 
12.0 Gaming Machines 

12.1 Gaming machines include all types of gambling activity which can take place on 
a machine, including betting on ‘virtual’ events. 

 
12.2 The Act itself prescribes the number and category of gaming machines that are 

permitted in each type of gambling premises. 
 
12.3 Subject to the provisions of the Act, gaming machines can be made available in 

a wide variety of premises, including : 
• casinos • bingo premises 

Page 28



Page 11 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

• betting premises, (including 
tracks ) 

• adult gaming centres 

• family entertainment centres 
• clubs 
• pubs and other alcohol licensed 

premises 
• travelling fairs 

 
12.4 A machine is not a gaming machine if the winning of a prize is determined 

purely by the player’s skill.  However, any element of ‘chance’ imparted by the 
action of the machine would bring it within the definition of a gaming machine. 

 
12.5 We will encourage permit and premises licence holders to adopt applicable 

codes of practice which may be introduced by the amusement industry or 
Gambling Commission, from time to time. 

 
13.0 Temporary Use Notices 
 
13.1 These allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no premises 

licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily 
for providing facilities for gambling.  We would object to notices where it 
appears that their effect would be to permit regular gambling in a place that 
could be described as one set of premises.  Premises that might be suitable for 
a temporary use notice would include hotels, conference centres and sporting 
venues.  A temporary use notice may only be granted to a person or company 
holding a relevant operating licence. 

 
13.2 Temporary use notices may only be used to permit the provision of facilities for 

equal chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to produce a single overall 
winner. Equal chance gaming is gaming which does not involve playing or 
staking against a bank and gives equally favourable chances to all participants. 
Examples of equal chance gaming include games such as backgammon, mah-
jong, rummy, kalooki, dominoes, cribbage, bingo and poker. 

 
14.0 Occasional Use Notices 
 
14.1 We have very little discretion as regards these notices aside from ensuring that 

the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded.  Whilst tracks 
are normally thought of as permanent racecourses, this can also include land 
which has a number of uses for example agricultural land upon which a point-
to-point meeting takes place.  Land used temporarily as a track can qualify, 
provided races or sporting events take place or will take place there.  The track 
need not be a permanent fixture. 

 
15.0 Lotteries 

15.1 All lotteries are unlawful unless they are run in accordance with an operating 
licence issued by the Gambling Commission - unless they are ‘exempt’ lotteries 
as defined by the Act.  One of those exemptions is for “small societies lotteries,” 
which we will allow, after registration.  We will maintain a register of small 
societies lotteries. 

 
15.2 A society will be allowed to register with us if it is ‘non-commercial’, in other 

words, if it is established and conducted : 
• for charitable purposes ; 

Page 29



Page 12 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

• for the purpose of enabling participation in, or of supporting, sport, athletic or 
a cultural activity; or 

• for any other non-commercial purpose other than for private gain. 
 

16.0 Exchange of Information 

16.1 To ensure the licensing objectives are met, we will establish a close working 
relationship with the police, the Gambling Commission and, where appropriate, 
other responsible authorities. 

 
16.2 Subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act 1998, we will share any 

information we receive through the application process with the Gambling 
Commission and any relevant responsible authority.  In doing so we will have 
regard to the Act itself, any guidance issued by the Commission and to any 
Regulations issued by the Secretary of State.  People can access personal 
information that we hold about them by contacting our Information Management 
Officer. 

 
16.3 We are committed to being open about what we do and how we come to our 

decisions, in accordance with the spirit of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 
(FOIA).  An important feature of the FOIA is the requirement for each public 
authority to produce a publication scheme setting out what information it will 
publish as a matter of course, how and when it will be published, and whether 
this information will be free of charge or on payment.   Copies of our FOI 
publication scheme are available on request from our Information Management 
Officer or via the Council’s website www.bromsgrove.gov.uk. 

 
16.4 FOIA also provides the public with a general right of access to information held 

by public authorities, and subject to exemptions, be supplied with a copy of that 
information.  Individual requests should be made in writing to the Information 
Management Officer or via the Council’s website. 

 
16.5 Unless restricted by the Gambling Act, details about applications, licences and 

representations will be made available in our public register.  Representations 
that we accept will be copied in their entirety to applicants, to provide an 
opportunity for mediation and to ensure that the rights of the applicant are not 
compromised. 

 
17.0 Enforcement Protocols 

 
17.1 The main enforcement and compliance role for us in terms of the Gambling Act 

2005 will be to ensure compliance with the Premises Licences and other 
permissions which it authorises.  The Gambling Commission will be the 
enforcement body for the Operator and Personal Licences and will also take the 
lead role on the investigation and where appropriate, the prosecution of illegal 
gambling.  Any concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming 
machines will not be dealt with by us but will be notified to the Gambling 
Commission.   

 
17.2 We will work with the Commission, the Police and other enforcing authorities, 

having regard to any specific guidance produced by the Gambling Commission, 
relevant codes of practice, the licensing objectives and this statement of 
principles, to provide for the targeting of agreed problem or high-risk premises.  

Page 30



Page 13 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

A lighter touch will be applied to those premises which are shown to be well 
managed and maintained. 

 
17.3 The overall aim is to permit the use of premises for gambling.  With that in mind 

it is intended that action will generally be taken against ‘problem’ premises 
through the licence review process. 

 
17.4 We will also be mindful of future developments as regard the work of the Better 

Regulation Executive whilst carrying out our regulatory functions. 
 
17.5 We will endeavour to be proportionate; accountable; consistent; transparent 

and targeted, as well as avoiding duplication with other regulatory regimes so 
far as possible. 

 
18.0 Reviews 
 
18.1 A review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties or 

responsible authorities, however, we will decide if the review is to be carried out 
on the basis of the following: 

 
§ In accordance with any relevant Code of Practice and/or guidance issued 

by the GC  
§ Consistent with the licensing objectives  
§ In accordance with our statement of principles.  

 
18.2 We will also consider whether or not the request for a review is frivolous, 

vexatious, or repetitious or whether we would wish to alter/revoke or suspend 
the licence. 

 
18.3 We can also initiate a review of a premises licence on the basis of any reason 

which we think is appropriate, including if a premises licence holder has not 
provided facilities for gambling at the premises.  This is to prevent people from 
applying for licences in a speculative manner without intending to use them. 

 
18.4 Once a valid application for a review has been received by us, representations 

can be made by responsible authorities and interested parties during the 
statutory consultation period.  The purpose of the review will be to determine 
whether we should take any action in relation to the licence.  The options 
available are: 

 
§ Add, remove or amend a licence condition;  
§ Remove or amend a default condition, such as opening hours;  
§ Suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding 3 months;  
§ Revoke the licence.  

 

Page 31



Page 14 of 14 
Draft v.2 2009 

Appendix B 
 
 

List of Consultees 
 
 
 
All Responsible Authorities 
 
District Councillors 
 
Parish Councils 
 
Premises Licence Holders under Licensing Act 2003 
 
Club Premises Certificate Holders under Licensing Act 2003 
 
Representatives of the Gaming Industry, including suppliers of Gaming facilities and 
machines 
 
Existing permit holders under the Gaming Act 1968 and Lotteries and Amusements 
Act 1976 
 
Voluntary organisations, such Citizens Advice Bureau and GamCare. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



  

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
LICENSING COMMITTIEE 

 
7TH SEPTEMBER 2009 

 
 
STREET TRADING CONSENT 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr. P. Whittaker 
Responsible Head of Service Dave Hammond 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To consider reviewing the Council’s policy including the fee structure in 

respect of street trading consent and extending the designated area to 
cover the boundary of Bromsgrove district, with the exception of 
Bromsgrove High Street and its immediate environs. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That members approve: 
 

(a) the extension of the designated consent streets area to cover the whole 
of Bromsgrove, with the exception of those streets set out at Appendix 1; 

 
(b) that the streets shown in Appendix 1 be designated as prohibited streets; 

 
(c) the revised Street Trading Policy including model conditions in respect of 

Street Trading Consents as set out at Appendix 3; 
 

(d) That applications for Street Trading Consents which do not fall within the 
Street Trading Policy or those in respect of which objections are 
received are determined by the Licensing Applications Sub-Committee; 

 
(e) That consideration to revoke a Street Trading Consent be determined by 

the Licensing Applications Sub-Committee; 
 

(f) That public speaking be introduced at the Licensing Applications Sub-
Committee on contested applications for Street Trading Consents and 
that authority is delegated to the Head of Legal, Equalities and 
Democratic Services in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of Licensing Committee and the Principal Licensing Officer to 
prepare a hearing procedure and guidance to reflect paragraph 3.16 
below. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 33



 

 
2.2 That members recommend to Council: 
 

(a) That the proposed fee structure be adopted. 
 
(b) That the scheme of delegation be revised in respect of street trading as 

follows: 
(i) “To authorise the Head of Planning and Environment Services to be 

responsible for inspections of premises to ensure compliance with 
street trading consent legislation, Council policy and any conditions 
attached to a consent; and 

 
(ii) “To authorise the Head of Planning & Environment Services to 

determine applications for consents for street trading in consent 
areas designated by the Council” . 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 A number of options are available to local authorities in respect of street 

trading.  Authorities may decide to designate part of or all of their area as a 
“Consent Street” which means that street trading is prohibited without the 
consent of the local authority.  Alternatively, authorities may decide to 
designate part or all of their area as a “Licence Street” which means that 
street trading is prohibited without a licence having been granted by the 
local authority.  Authorities may also designate part or all of their area as a 
“Prohibited Street” which means that no street trading can take place at all.  
Finally, a local authority may choose not to designate any area in which 
case street trading is permitted and the local authority has no control over it.   

 
3.2 The following are not deemed to be street trading: 

• Trading by a pedlar; 
• Anything done in a market or fair established by a grant, enactment 

or order; 
• Trading in a trunk road picnic area; 
• Trading as a news vendor (subject to certain conditions); 
• Trading carried on as part of the business of the shop; 
• Roundsman business; 
• Trading from an object or structure placed on the highway which is 

licensed under the Highways Act 1980; and 
• Recreation and/or refreshment facilities operated by a council on a 

highway. 
  
3.3 As Members are aware this Council’s existing Street Trading Policy 

designates the High Street and parts of surrounding streets as outlined in 
Appendix 2 as Consent Streets.  This means that no street trading is 
permitted in that designated area without the specific consent of the 
Council.  With regard to the remainder of the district, these areas were 
never designated and therefore we currently have no control over any street 
trading activity outside of the High Street area. 

Page 34



 

 
3.4 At present the Council’s policy is not to grant Street Trading Consents 

except in the most exceptional circumstances.  The only permits which are 
now granted are (a) for the regular Farmer’s Market, (b) for the annual 
Elizabethan Street Market and (c) for the hot dog stall which trades in 
conjunction with the Christmas Lights switch-on. 

  
3.5 It is proposed that the whole district (other than the High Street and 

surrounding streets as outlined in Appendix 1) should be designated as a 
Consent Street and that the High Street and the surrounding area as shown 
in Appendix 1 should be designated as a Prohibited Street.   

 
3.6 Should Members be minded to approve Consent Street status across the 

whole district, this will mean that all existing highway traders and any new 
traders will have to obtain consent from the Council following 
implementation of the revised policy.  This will give the Council greater 
control over these mobile units in terms of ensuring that they comply with all 
relevant legislation governing food hygiene, litter, noise nuisance and 
pollution and public safety.  Furthermore, enforcement action can be taken 
against a trader if they are found to be in breach of any of the conditions 
attached to a Consent, in line with the Council’s Enforcement Policy.  If it 
was felt necessary to consider revoking a Consent, the matter would be 
referred to the Council’s Licensing Applications Sub Committee to 
determine and the Consent holder would be invited to attend the hearing.  

 
3.7 Those traders that are currently operating from lay-bys will be given a 

transition period of three months to submit an application. 
 
3.8 If Members decide to designate the High Street and surrounding areas as 

shown on Appendix 1 as a Prohibited Street, the effect is that no street 
trading can be permitted.  This will not prevent the Council from holding the 
regular market or any themed Markets as the right to hold this has been 
granted by Charter and therefore is specifically excluded from the street 
trading regime.  Furthermore, it would not prevent the Council from 
operating facilities for recreation or refreshment on the High Street, perhaps 
as part of its street entertainments programme. In drawing up the list of 
Prohibited Streets, full consultation has taken place with the Council’s 
Economic Development Manager, who is fully supportive of this view as he 
feels that this will not detract from the market and is a positive step in 
revitalising the High Street area. 

 
3.9 A notice of intention to pass a resolution designating all streets as Consent 

Streets (with the exception of those outlined in Appendix 1) has been 
published and consultation has taken place with the Police Authority and the 
Highways Authority.  No representations were received during the 28 day 
consultation period.  

 

Page 35



 

3.10 As part of the revision to the existing Street Trading Policy, Members may 
wish to consider adopting a more comparative fee structure.  At present the 
Council currently charges £15.00 per application. 

 
3.11  The fees charged by neighbouring authorities are as follows: 
 

Wychavon District Council Hot Food £564 per annum 
 Cold Food £396 per annum 
 Non food £564 per annum 
 Renewal fee £206 per annum 
 Occasional consent up to 

one calendar month 
10% of appropriate 
charge 

Worcester City Council Single Unit 10x10 £3168 per annum 
 Single unit over 10x10 £5884 per annum 
 Day fee £58 plus £16 per 

additional trading day 
 Mobile traders £87 per annum 
Wyre Forest District 
Council 

Mobile traders £572 per annum 

Redditch Borough Council Mobile traders (They 
have not issued an 
annual consent) 

£84 plus VAT per 
trading day 

 
3.12 It is proposed that the following fees will apply: 
 

Annual Street Trading Consent - £552.00 per annum 
Occasional Street Trading Consent - £25 per day 

 
3.13 Should a consent be refused, surrendered or revoked, the Council is under 

a duty to remit or refund the whole or part of any fee paid.  It is proposed 
that any refund of the application fee is pro-rata depending on the remainder 
of the term left on the consent, less an administration fee of £25.00. 

 
3.14 The Scheme of Delegation currently delegates authority to the Head of 

Planning & Environment Services to determine applications for street 
trading licences in consent areas.  It is proposed that in practice that 
delegation will only be exercised if those applications fall within the Street 
Trading Policy and provided no objections are received during the 
consultation period from the individuals and organisations whom it is 
proposed should be consulted on each application.  It is proposed that 
applications for Street Trading Consents which do not fully comply with the 
Street Policy or in respect of which representations are received during the 
consultation period will be referred to the Council’s Licensing Applications 
Sub-Committee for determination.   

 
3.15 It is proposed that the wording in the Scheme of Delegation be revised to 

read, “To authorise the Head of Planning & Environment Services to 
determine applications for consents for street trading in consent areas 
designated by the Council” as this better reflects the wording of the 

Page 36



 

legislation.  It is suggested that in order to retain flexibility to determine 
applications at short notice that the Scheme of Delegation is not revised to 
specifically exclude the Head of Planning & Environment Services from 
determining applications which fall outside policy or where objections are 
received, although in practice that will be the case.   

 
3.16 In order to ensure that applicants and objectors have the opportunity to fully 

put forward their case and as part of the Council’s policy of increasing public 
participation, it is proposed that public speaking should be permitted if 
applications are to be determined by the Licensing Applications Sub-
Committee. If Members approve public speaking at the Sub-Committee, all 
parties concerned would be invited to attend the meeting and put forward 
their case and would operate along similar lines to the public speaking at 
Licensing Act 2003 hearings and taxi licensing hearings, namely:  

 
(i) The applicant and or his representative will be invited to attend the 

meeting to address the Sub-Committee and answer any questions 
the Sub-Committee may have; 

(ii) Those consultees/interested parties who have made representations 
will be invited to attend the meeting to address the Sub-Committee 
and answer any questions the Sub-Committee may have; 

(iii) The applicant and/or his representative will be allowed 10 minutes to 
explain the application.  If any questions are put to the applicant and 
or his representative these will not form part of the allocated 10 
minutes; 

(iv) 10 minutes will be allocated to consultees/interested parties to put 
forward their representations.  If any questions are put to the 
consultee/interested party these will not form part of the allocated 10 
minutes; 

(v) The Chairman be given a discretion to extend these times with the 
consent of the Sub-Committee. 

 
3.17 It is recommended that the Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic 

Services in consultation with the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Principal 
Licensing Officer develop a hearing procedure and guidance for applicants 
and objectors. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The cost of implementing the decisions contained in this report will be met 

from existing budgets. 
 
4.2 The income generated from licensing existing traders could amount to 

approximately £19,000, which would be additional income for 2010/11. 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1982 section 3 

empowers local authorities to designate all or part of their areas for the 

Page 37



 

purposes of street trading.  Schedule 4 of that Act specifies the procedure 
for resolving to designate streets, and for issuing Street Trading Consents.  
Paragraph 7 of Schedule 4 of the Act permits the Council to grant a Street 
Trading Consent if they think fit and to attach conditions to it as they 
consider reasonable necessary to prevent obstruction of the street or 
danger to persons using it; or nuisance or annoyance (whether to persons 
using the street or otherwise). 

 
5.3 Paragraph 8 of Schedule 4 of the Act, further permits the Council to include 

in a Street Trading Consent permission for its holder to trade in a Consent 
Street from a stationary van, cart, barrow or other vehicle or from a portable 
stall. 

 
5.4 Paragraph 10 of Schedule 4 of the Act states that a Street Trading Consent 

may be granted for any period not exceeding 12 months, but may be 
revoked at any time. 

 
5.5 There is no right of appeal against the refusal to grant a Street Trading 

Consent. 
 
5.6 In respect of making changes to the designated area, the Council must 

publish a notice of their intention to in a local newspaper circulating in their 
area and consult with the Police Authority and Highways Authority. 

 
5.7 The Council must consider any representations relating to the proposed 

resolution. 
 
5.8 A District Council may by resolution designate any street in their district as: 

(a) a prohibited street; 
(b) a licence street; or 
(c) a consent street. 

 
5.9 If members approve the extension to the designated area, the Council will 

be required to publish a notice stating that the Council has passed such a 
resolution in two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper. 

 
5.10 Should the Council wish to rescind a designation or re-designate a street 

the same procedure must be followed. 
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  This proposal contributes to the Council’s objective “Sense of community 

and well being”.   
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
 

• Inability to regulate unlicensed traders 

Page 38



 

 
7.2    These risks are being managed as follows:  

 
•   Inability to regulate unlicensed traders: 
 

Risk Register: Planning and environment Services 
Key Objective Ref No: 6   
Key Objective: Effective, efficient and legally compliant Licensing 
Service 

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  Application packs will be sent to all existing traders informing them of new 

Council Policy.  Whereafter they will be given a period of three months to 
apply for a licence should they wish to continue to trade.  Information will be 
made available on the website. 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Each application will be considered on its own individual merits. 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no value for money implications. 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues - None 
 
Personnel Implications - None 
 
Governance/Performance Management - None 
 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 - None 
 
Policy – If members approve the revised policy, it will supersede all 
existing policies relating to Street Trading Consents. 
 
Environmental – The impact of possible increased litter has been 
addressed in the Policy and conditions will be placed on any 
consents granted that each trader must ensure hold a current trade 
waste contract to dispose of any business related waste and all 
waste must be removed from the site by close of trade. They will also 
be responsible for ensuring all litter resulting from their trade is 
cleared prior to them vacating the site.  
 
Any waste or litter left behind at the close of trade will be dealt with 
through the appropriate enforcement channels (Environmental 

Page 39



 

Protection Act 1990 and Clean Neighbourhood and Environment Act 
2005). 
 
 

 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (Partnerships and Projects)  
 

Yes 

Executive Director (Services) 
 

Yes 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards will be affected. 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 Proposed list of Prohibited Streets 
 Appendix 2 List of streets currently designated as Consent Streets 
 Appendix 3 Draft Policy for Street Trading Consents 
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Sharon Smith  
E Mail:  sharon.smith@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881626 

Page 40



 

Appendix 1 
 
 

List of Proposed Prohibited Streets 
 
Worcester Road  All parts 
 
Hanover Street  All parts 
 
St. John Street  All parts 
 
Chapel Street  All parts 
 
Mill Lane   All parts 
 
Market Street  All parts 
 
Church Street  All parts 
 
Station Street  All parts 
 
High Street   All parts 
 

Page 41



 

Appendix 2 
 

List of Existing Designated Consent Streets 
 
 
Stourbridge Road (part) From High Street in a northerly direction to its 

junction with Market Street. 
 

Birmingham Road (part) From High Street in a northerly direction for a 
distance of approx. 30 metres. 
 

High Street (part) Between its junction with Stourbridge Road, 
and Birmingham Road and its junction with 
Stratford Road. 
 
Between its junction with New Road and its 
junction with St. John Street. 
 
Between its junction with Stratford Road and 
its junction with New Road. 
 

Worcester Road (part) Between its junction with St. John Street and 
its junction with Hanover Street. 
 

Hanover Street All parts. 
 

St. John Street All parts. 
 

Chapel Street (part) Between its junction with High Street and 
its junction with Windsor Street. 
 

Mill Lane Between its junction with High Street and 
the service road off Market Street. 
 

Church Street (part) Between its junction with High Street and 
Market Street. 
 

Market Street (part) From its junction with High Street in a south-
westerly direction for a distance of 
approximately 90 metres. 
 

Parkside All parts. 
 

 

Page 42



 1 

  
 

Page 43



 2 

  
  
  

IInnttrroodduuccttiioonn  
  

11..  PPuurrppoossee  ooff  tthhee  PPoolliiccyy        
11..11  IItt  iiss  tthhee  CCoouunncciill’’ss  iinntteennttiioonn  ttoo  ccrreeaattee  aa  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  eennvviirroonnmmeenntt  

wwhhiicchh  ccoommpplleemmeennttss  tthhee  aarreeaa  ooff  ttrraaddiinngg,,  iiss  sseennssiittiivvee  ttoo  tthhee  nneeeeddss  ooff  
rreessiiddeennttss  aanndd  nneeaarrbbyy  bbuussiinneesssseess,,  wwhhiicchh  pprroommootteess  ccoonnssuummeerr  cchhooiiccee  
wwhhiillsstt  eennssuurriinngg  tthhee  ssaaffeettyy  ooff  tthhee  ppuubblliicc  aanndd  pprreevveennttss  nnuuiissaannccee  bbeeiinngg  
ccaauusseedd..    TThhiiss  ppoolliiccyy  iiss  ddeessiiggnneedd  ttoo  pprroommoottee  tthhoossee  aaiimmss..    

  
22..  SSuummmmaarryy  ooff  tthhee  PPoolliiccyy  
22..11  IInn  oorrddeerr  ttoo  pprroommoottee  tthhee  aabboovvee  ppuurrppoossee  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  hhaass  ddeessiiggnnaatteedd::  

    
••  tthhee  eennttiirree  ddiissttrriicctt  ooff  BBrroommssggrroovvee  ((ootthheerr  tthhaann  tthhee  HHiigghh  SSttrreeeett  [[aanndd  

cceerrttaaiinn  aaddjjooiinniinngg  ssttrreeeettss]]))  aass  CCoonnsseenntt  SSttrreeeettss  wwhhiicchh  mmeeaannss  tthhaatt  
ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  iiss  oonnllyy  aalllloowweedd  iiff  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  ggrraannttss  aa  SSttrreeeett  
TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt;;  aanndd  

  
••  tthhee  HHiigghh  SSttrreeeett  [[aanndd  cceerrttaaiinn  aaddjjooiinniinngg  ssttrreeeettss  sshhoowwnn  oonn  tthhee  

eenncclloosseedd  ppllaann]]  aass  PPrroohhiibbiitteedd  SSttrreeeettss  wwhhiicchh  mmeeaannss  tthhaatt  nnoo  ssttrreeeett  
ttrraaddiinngg  iiss  aalllloowweedd  oonn  tthhee  HHiigghh  SSttrreeeett//tthhoossee  ssttrreeeettss..  

  
22..22  TThhiiss  ppoolliiccyy  aaiimmss  ttoo  aassssiisstt  iinn  aacchhiieevviinngg  ccoonnssiisstteennccyy  iinn  ddeetteerrmmiinniinngg  

aapppplliiccaattiioonnss  ffoorr  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseennttss..      
  
33..  BBaacckkggrroouunndd  
33..11  SSttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  mmeeaannss  tthhee  sseelllliinngg,,  eexxppoossiinngg  ffoorr  ssaallee,,  oorr  ooffffeerriinngg  ffoorr  

ssaallee  ooff  aannyy  aarrttiiccllee  ((iinncclluuddiinngg  aa  lliivviinngg  tthhiinngg))  iinn  aannyy  ssttrreeeett,,  rrooaadd,,  
ffoooottwwaayy  oorr  ootthheerr  aarreeaa  ttoo  wwhhiicchh  tthhee  ppuubblliicc  hhaavvee  aacccceessss  wwiitthhoouutt  
ppaayymmeenntt  iinn  tthhee  ddiissttrriicctt  ooff  BBrroommssggrroovvee..      

  
33..22  TThheerree  aarree  ssoommee  ttyyppeess  ooff  ttrraaddee  tthhaatt  aarree  eexxeemmpptt  ffrroomm  tthhee  ddeeffiinniittiioonn  ooff  

ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg..    TThheessee  iinncclluuddee::--  
••  aaccttiinngg  aass  aa  ppeeddllaarr  uunnddeerr  aa  ppeeddllaarr’’ss  cceerrttiiffiiccaattee  ggrraanntteedd  uunnddeerr  tthhee  

PPeeddllaarrss  AAcctt  11887711;;  
••  mmaarrkkeettss  oorr  ffaaiirrss  eessttaabblliisshheedd  bbyy  CChhaarrtteerr;;  
••  ttrraaddiinngg  iinn  aa  ttrruunnkk  rrooaadd  ppiiccnniicc  aarreeaa;;  
••  ttrraaddiinngg  aass  aa  nneewwss  vveennddoorr;;  
••  ttrraaddiinngg  aatt  aa  ppeettrrooll  ffiilllliinngg  ssttaattiioonn;;  
••  ttrraaddiinngg  oonn  pprreemmiisseess  uusseedd  aass  aa  sshhoopp  oorr  iinn  tthhee  ssttrreeeett  aaddjjooiinniinngg  aa  

sshhoopp,,  aass  ppaarrtt  ooff  tthhee  bbuussiinneessss  ooff  tthhee  sshhoopp;;  
••  SSeelllliinngg  tthhiinnggss  aass  ppaarrtt  ooff  tthhee  bbuussiinneessss  ooff  aa  rroouunnddssmmaann  ee..gg..  aa  

mmiillkkmmaann  ((bbuutt  nnoott  iiccee  ccrreeaamm  vvaannss))  ;;  aanndd  
••  ffaacciilliittiieess  ffoorr  rreeccrreeaattiioonn  aanndd  rreeffrreesshhmmeenntt  ooppeerraatteedd  bbyy  tthhee  CCoouunncciill..  

  
33..33  AA  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  mmuusstt  bbee  oobbttaaiinneedd  ffrroomm  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  bbeeffoorree  

ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  ccaann  ttaakkee  ppllaaccee  iinn  CCoonnsseenntt  SSttrreeeettss..      

Page 44



 3 

  
44..  CCrriitteerriiaa  ffoorr  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseennttss  
44..11  IInn  ddeetteerrmmiinniinngg  aann  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  ffoorr  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt,,  tthhee  

CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  ccoonnssiiddeerr  tthhee  ffoolllloowwiinngg  ffaaccttoorrss::  
  

((aa))  PPuubblliicc  SSaaffeettyy  ––  ddooeess  tthhee  llooccaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  pprrooppoosseedd  ttrraaddiinngg  
ssiittee  rreepprreesseenntt  oorr  iiss  iitt  lliikkeellyy  ttoo  rreepprreesseenntt,,  aa  ssuubbssttaannttiiaall  rriisskk  ttoo  
tthhee  ppuubblliicc  aanndd  uusseerrss  ooff  tthhee  hhiigghhwwaayy??    TThhee  CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  
ccoonnssiiddeerr  tthhiinnggss  lliikkee  iimmppoorrttaanntt  ssiigghhtt  lliinneess  ffoorr  CCCCTTVV  
ccaammeerraass,,  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  ooff  eemmeerrggeennccyy  vveehhiicclleess,,  ffiirree  
hhaazzaarrddss,,  hhyyggiieennee  aanndd  tthhee  ssaaffeettyy  ooff  aacccceessss  ttoo  oorr  ffrroomm  tthhee  
ttrraaddiinngg  ssiittee..  

((bb))  PPuubblliicc  OOrrddeerr  ––  ddooeess  tthhee  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  aaccttiivviittyy  rreepprreesseenntt,,  oorr  
iiss  iitt  lliikkeellyy  ttoo  rreepprreesseenntt,,  aa  ssuubbssttaannttiiaall  rriisskk  ttoo  ppuubblliicc  oorrddeerr??  

((cc))  TThhee  aavvooiiddaannccee  ooff  ppuubblliicc  nnuuiissaannccee  ––  ddooeess  tthhee  ssttrreeeett  
ttrraaddiinngg  aaccttiivviittyy  rreepprreesseenntt,,  oorr  iiss  iitt  lliikkeellyy  ttoo  rreepprreesseenntt,,  aa  
ssuubbssttaannttiiaall  rriisskk  ooff  nnuuiissaannccee  ttoo  tthhee  ppuubblliicc  ffrroomm  nnooiissee,,  ssmmeellll,,  
lliitttteerr  oorr  llaattee  nniigghhtt  ddiissttuurrbbaannccee??  

((dd))  NNeeeeddss  ooff  tthhee  aarreeaa  ––  aarree  tthheerree  eennoouugghh  ootthheerr  ttrraaddiinngg  oouuttlleettss  
ttoo  sseerrvvee  tthhee  nneeeeddss  ooff  tthhee  aarreeaa??    AA  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  
wwiillll  nnoott  bbee  ggrraanntteedd  wwhheerree  iitt  iiss  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  tthhaatt  tthheerree  aarree  
aallrreeaaddyy  eennoouugghh  ttrraaddeerrss  ttrraaddiinngg  iinn  tthhee  vviicciinniittyy  ((ffrroomm  sshhooppss  oorr  
ootthheerr  ssttaallllss))  iinn  ggooooddss  iinn  wwhhiicchh  tthhee  aapppplliiccaanntt  wwiisshheess  ttoo  ttrraaddee,,  
oorr  iiff  tthheerree  iiss  aann  eexxiissttiinngg  ccoonncceennttrraattiioonn  ooff  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddeerrss  iinn  
tthhee  ssttrreeeett  iinn  wwhhiicchh  tthhee  aapppplliiccaanntt  wwiisshheess  ttoo  ttrraaddee..  

((ee))  CCoonnssuullttaattiioonn  --  rreelleevvaanntt  rreessppoonnsseess  ffrroomm  ccoonnssuulltteeeess..  
  
44..22  IInn  aaddddiittiioonn  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  ccoonnssiiddeerr  tthhee  ffoolllloowwiinngg  ggeenneerraall  ccrriitteerriiaa::  

  
••  tthhee  ttrraaddeerr  wwiillll  bbee  eexxppeecctteedd  ttoo  pprroovviiddee  aa  sseerrvviiccee  wwhhiicchh  iiss  aa  bbeenneeffiitt  

ttoo  tthhee  ppuubblliicc  aanndd  wwhhiicchh  eennhhaanncceess  tthhee  aarreeaa  bbyy  bbrriinnggiinngg  iinn  nneeww  
pprroodduuccttss  oorr  aaddddiinngg  ttoo  tthhee  vviittaalliittyy  ooff  tthhee  aarreeaa;;    

  
••  tthhee  TTrraaddiinngg  UUnniitt,,  iinncclluuddiinngg  aannyy  aassssoocciiaatteedd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt  mmuusstt  bbee  ooff  

ggoooodd  qquuaalliittyy  aanndd  ccoommpplliimmeennttaarryy  ttoo  tthhee  cchhaarraacctteerr  ooff  tthhee  aarreeaa;;  
  

••  eeaacchh  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  wwiillll  bbee  jjuuddggeedd  oonn  tthhee  ggeenneerraall  nneeeeddss  ooff  tthhee  
llooccaalliittyy;;  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  wwiillll  nnoott  nnoorrmmaallllyy  bbee  ggrraanntteedd  
wwhheerree  tthheerree  iiss  aallrreeaaddyy  aaddeeqquuaattee  ssiimmiillaarr  pprroovviissiioonn  iinn  tthhee  
iimmmmeeddiiaattee  aarreeaa;;  

  
••  tthhee  eeffffeecctt  oonn  rrooaadd  ssaaffeettyy  ccaauusseedd  bbyy  tthhee  ssiittiinngg  ooff  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  

TTrraaddiinngg  UUnniitt  oorr  bbyy  ccuussttoommeerrss  vviissiittiinngg  oorr  lleeaavviinngg  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  
TTrraaddiinngg  UUnniitt;;  

  
••  tthhee  eeffffeecctt  ooff  aannyy  lloossss  ooff  aammeenniittyy  ccaauusseedd  bbyy  nnooiissee,,  ttrraaffffiicc  oorr  ssmmeellll;;  

  
••  aannyy  eexxiissttiinngg  TTrraaffffiicc  RReegguullaattiioonn  OOrrddeerrss  ee..gg..  wwaaiittiinngg  rreessttrriiccttiioonnss;;  

aanndd  
  

••  aannyy  ppootteennttiiaall  oobbssttrruuccttiioonn  ooff  ppeeddeessttrriiaann  oorr  vveehhiiccuullaarr  aacccceessss..  
  

Page 45



 4 

44..33  NNoottee::  
SSuuiittccaassee  ssaalleessmmeenn  aanndd  ssiimmiillaarr  ttrraaddeerrss  wwiillll  nnoott  bbee  iissssuueedd  wwiitthh  aa  
SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt..  

  
44..44  AAnnyy  pprrooppoossaall  ttoo  sseellll  hhoott  ffoooodd  aanndd  ddrriinnkk  bbeettwweeeenn  1111ppmm  aanndd  55aamm  aallssoo  

rreeqquuiirreess  aa  PPrreemmiisseess  LLiicceennccee  iissssuueedd  uunnddeerr  tthhee  LLiicceennssiinngg  AAcctt  22000033..  
  
55..  EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  IIssssuueess  
55..11  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddeerrss  mmuusstt  ccoommppllyy  wwiitthh  aallll  lleeggiissllaattiivvee  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  rreellaattiinngg  

ttoo  EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  HHeeaalltthh  aanndd  TTrraaddiinngg  SSttaannddaarrddss..    FFaaiilluurree  ttoo  oobbsseerrvvee  
tthheessee  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  mmaayy  rreessuulltt  iinn  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  bbeeiinngg  
rreevvookkeedd,,  oorr  aa  ttrraaddeerr  mmiigghhtt  bbee  pprroosseeccuutteedd  ffoorr  mmoorree  sseerriioouuss  ooffffeenncceess..      
  

55..22  SSoommee  ooff  tthhee  kkeeyy  eennvviirroonnmmeennttaall  ppooiinnttss  aarree  lliisstteedd  bbeellooww::  
  

••  IItt  wwiillll  bbee  tthhee  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittyy  ooff  tthhee  ttrraaddeerr  ttoo  kkeeeepp  tthhee  aarreeaa  cclleeaann  
aanndd  ffrreeee  ffrroomm  lliitttteerr  dduurriinngg  tthhee  ccoonnsseenntteedd//ooppeerraattiioonnaall  hhoouurrss;;  

••  AAllll  wwaassttee  ggeenneerraatteedd  mmuusstt  bbee  ddiissppoosseedd  ooff  iinn  aaccccoorrddaannccee  wwiitthh  tthhee  
rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  ooff  tthhee  EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  PPrrootteeccttiioonn  AAcctt  11999900;;  

••  TTrraaddeerrss  wwhhoossee  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  aaccttiivviittyy  iinncclluuddeess  tthhee  pprroovviissiioonn  ooff  
ffoooodd  iinn  aannyy  ffoorrmm  mmuusstt  ccoommppllyy  wwiitthh  tthhee  pprroovviissiioonnss  ooff  ccuurrrreenntt  ffoooodd  
ssaaffeettyy  aanndd  hheeaalltthh  aanndd  ssaaffeettyy  lleeggiissllaattiioonn;;  

••  AAllll  ffoooodd  ttrraaddeerrss  mmuusstt  bbee  rreeggiisstteerreedd  aass  aa  ffoooodd  bbuussiinneessss  wwiitthh  aa  
llooccaall  aauutthhoorriittyy  eennvviirroonnmmeennttaall  hheeaalltthh  ddeeppaarrttmmeenntt  wwhheerree  tthhee  uunniitt  iiss  
kkeepptt  pprriioorr  ttoo  ttrraaddiinngg;;  

••  TThhee  TTrraaddiinngg  UUnniitt  mmaayy  bbee  iinnssppeecctteedd  bbyy  aann  aauutthhoorriisseedd  ooffffiicceerr  ooff  
tthhee  llooccaall  aauutthhoorriittyy  aatt  aallll  rreeaassoonnaabbllee  ttiimmeess;;  aanndd  

• Visits may be made to holders of Street Trading Consents 
throughout the consent period to check whether conditions are 
being complied with or to carry out any duty the Council has, 
such as food safety inspections. 

  
66..  FFeeeess  
66..11  TThhee  CCoouunncciill  rreevviieewwss  tthhee  ffeeeess  ffoorr  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseennttss  eeaacchh  

yyeeaarr..    TThhee  ccuurrrreenntt  ffeeeess  aarree  ::  
  

AAnnnnuuaall  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  ccoonnsseenntt    ££555522  ppeerr    aannnnuumm  
OOccccaassiioonnaall  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  ccoonnsseenntt    ££2255  ppeerr  ddaayy    

  
66..22  FFeeeess  mmuusstt  bbee  ppaaiidd  iinn  ffuullll  iinn  aaddvvaannccee..  
  
66..33  IIff  aannyy  cchheeqquuee  iiss  ddiisshhoonnoouurreedd  bbyy  aa  bbaannkk,,  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  iinnssiisstt  tthhaatt  

ppaayymmeenntt  iiss  mmaaddee  iinn  ccaasshh  oorr  ootthheerr  cclleeaarreedd  ffuunnddss  wwiitthhiinn  55  wwoorrkkiinngg  
ddaayyss  aatt  tthhee  CCuussttoommeerr  SSeerrvviiccee  CCeennttrree,,  SScchhooooll  DDrriivvee,,  BBrroommssggrroovvee,,  
tteell::  0011552277  888811228888..    IIff  ssuucchh  ppaayymmeenntt  iiss  nnoott  mmaaddee  wwiitthhiinn  55  ddaayyss  tthhee  
CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  rreevvookkee  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  ((iiff  tthhee  ffeeee  iiss  ffoorr  
rreenneewwaall  ooff  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt))  oorr  wwiillll  rreeffuussee  ttoo  iissssuuee  aa  nneeww  
SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt..  

  
66..44  IIff  aann  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  ffoorr  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  iiss  rreeffuusseedd  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  

wwiillll  rreeffuunndd  tthhee  ffeeee  iinn  ffuullll..      
  

Page 46



 5 

66..55  IIff  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  iiss  ssuurrrreennddeerreedd  oorr  rreevvookkeedd  bbeeffoorree  tthhee  
eenndd  ooff  tthhee  ccoonnsseenntt  ppeerriioodd,,  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  rreeffuunndd  tthhee  wwhhoollee  oorr  ppaarrtt  
ooff  aannyy  ffeeee  ppaaiidd  aass  aapppplliiccaabbllee  iinn  pprrooppoorrttiioonn  ttoo  tthhee  lleennggtthh  ooff  ccoonnsseenntt  
ppeerriioodd  wwhhiicchh  hhaass  eellaappsseedd..    AAnnyy  rreeffuunndd  ooff  aa  ccoonnsseenntt  ffeeee  wwiillll  bbee  
ddeeppeennddaanntt  oonn  tthhee  rreemmaaiinnddeerr  ooff  tthhee  tteerrmm  lleefftt  oonn  tthhee  ccoonnsseenntt  lleessss  aann  
aaddmmiinniissttrraattiioonn  ffeeee  ooff  ££2255..0000..  

  
77..  AAppppllyyiinngg  ffoorr  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  
77..11  AAnn  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  ffoorr  tthhee  ggrraanntt  oorr  rreenneewwaall  ooff  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  

sshhoouulldd  bbee  mmaaddee  ttoo::  
  

LLiicceennssiinngg  SSeeccttiioonn  
PPllaannnniinngg  aanndd  EEnnvviirroonnmmeenntt  SSeerrvviicceess  
BBrroommssggrroovvee  DDiissttrriicctt  CCoouunncciill  
BBuurrccoott  LLaannee  
BBrroommssggrroovvee  
WWoorrcceesstteerrsshhiirree  
BB6600  11AAAA..  
  

77..22  AAllll  aapppplliiccaannttss  mmuusstt  bbee  oovveerr  1177  yyeeaarrss  ooff  aaggee..  
  

77..33  TThhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  mmuusstt  bbee  aaccccoommppaanniieedd  bbyy  tthhee  ffoolllloowwiinngg::  
  

••  aa  ccoommpplleetteedd  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  ffoorrmm;;  
••  tthhee  ffeeee;;    
••  aann  oorrddnnaannccee  ssuurrvveeyy  mmaapp  ((oorr  eeqquuiivvaalleenntt))  ttoo  aa  mmiinniimmuumm  

ssccaallee  ooff  11::11225500  cclleeaarrllyy  iinnddiiccaattiinngg  tthhee  llooccaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  
pprrooppoosseedd  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  ssiittee;;  

••  aa  ccuurrrreenntt  pphhoottooggrraapphh  ooff  tthhee  aapppplliiccaanntt;;    
••  tthhrreeee  ccoolloouurr  pphhoottooggrraapphhss  ooff  tthhee  TTrraaddiinngg  UUnniitt  wwiitthh  ffuullll  

ddeettaaiillss  ooff  aannyy  vvaann,,  bbaarrrrooww,,  ootthheerr  vveehhiiccllee  oorr  ppoorrttaabbllee  ssttaallll  
wwhhiicchh  tthhee  aapppplliiccaanntt  iinntteennddss  ttoo  uussee;;  aanndd  

••  wwhheerree  ffoooodd  iiss  ttoo  bbee  ssoolldd  tthhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  mmuusstt  iinncclluuddee  ddeettaaiillss  
ooff  tthhee  llooccaall  aauutthhoorriittyy  wwhheerree  tthhee  ttrraaddeerr  iiss  rreeggiisstteerreedd  aass  aa  
ffoooodd  bbuussiinneessss..  

  
77..44  OOnnccee  tthhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  hhaass  bbeeeenn  rreecceeiivveedd,,  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  mmaakkee  

aarrrraannggeemmeennttss  ffoorr  tthhee  vvaann,,  bbaarrrrooww,,  vveehhiiccllee  oorr  ssttaallll  ttoo  bbee  iinnssppeecctteedd  bbyy  
oonnee  ooff  iittss  aauutthhoorriisseedd  ooffffiicceerrss..  
  

77..55  TThhee  CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  ccoonnssuulltt  wwiitthh  tthhee  ffoolllloowwiinngg::  
  

••  tthhee  HHiigghhwwaayyss  AAuutthhoorriittyy  ––  WWoorrcceesstteerrsshhiirree  CCoouunnttyy  CCoouunncciill;;  
••  tthhee  CChhiieeff  OOffffiicceerr  ooff  PPoolliiccee;;  
••  tthhee  CCoouunncciill’’ss  EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  HHeeaalltthh  tteeaamm;;  
••  tthhee  CCoouunncciill’’ss  SSttrreeeett  SScceennee  aanndd  CCoommmmuunniittyy  SSeerrvviicceess  tteeaamm;;  
••  tthhee  CCoouunncciill’’ss  EEccoonnoommiicc  DDeevveellooppmmeenntt  tteeaamm;;  
••  TTrraaddiinngg  SSttaannddaarrddss;;  
••  tthhee  PPaarriisshh  CCoouunncciill  ((iiff  aannyy))  iinn  wwhhiicchh  tthhee  TTrraaddiinngg  UUnniitt  iiss  ttoo  bbee  

llooccaatteedd;;,,    
••  tthhee  WWaarrdd  CCoouunncciilllloorrss;;  aanndd  

Page 47



 6 

••  tthhee  oowwnneerrss//ooccccuuppiieerrss  ooff  aannyy  pprrooppeerrttiieess  nneeaarr  ttoo  tthhee  
pprrooppoosseedd  llooccaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  ttrraaddiinngg  ssiittee..    

  
77..66  TThhee  ccrriitteerriiaa  sseett  oouutt  iinn  tthhiiss  PPoolliiccyy  wwiillll  bbee  uusseedd  ttoo  ddeetteerrmmiinnee  tthhee  

aapppplliiccaattiioonn..    EEaacchh  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  wwiillll  bbee  aasssseesssseedd  oonn  iittss  mmeerriittss  aanndd  
iinnddiivviidduuaall  cciirrccuummssttaanncceess..    AApppplliiccaattiioonnss  aarree  ddeecciiddeedd  wwiitthhiinn  2288  ddaayyss,,  
uunnlleessss  aaddvviisseedd  ootthheerrwwiissee..  
    

77..77  IIff  nnoo  oobbjjeeccttiioonnss  aarree  rreecceeiivveedd  dduurriinngg  tthhee  ccoonnssuullttaattiioonn  ppeerriioodd  aanndd  tthhee  
aapppplliiccaattiioonn  ccoommpplliieess  wwiitthh  tthhee  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  ooff  tthhiiss  PPoolliiccyy  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  
TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  wwiillll  bbee  ggrraanntteedd..      
  

77..88  IIff  aannyy  rreelleevvaanntt  oobbjjeeccttiioonnss  aarree  rreecceeiivveedd  dduurriinngg  tthhee  ccoonnssuullttaattiioonn  
ppeerriioodd,,  tthhee  aapppplliiccaanntt  wwiillll  bbee  nnoottiiffiieedd  ooff  aannyy  oobbjjeeccttiioonn  aanndd  wwiillll  bbee  
ggiivveenn  tthhee  ooppppoorrttuunniittyy  ttoo  rreessppoonndd  ttoo  ssuucchh  oobbjjeeccttiioonnss..      
  

77..99  IIff  tthhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  ddooeess  nnoott  ccoommppllyy  wwiitthh  tthhee  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  ooff  tthhiiss  
ppoolliiccyy  oorr  iiff  rreelleevvaanntt  oobbjjeeccttiioonnss  aarree  rreecceeiivveedd,,  tthhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  wwiillll  bbee  
rreeffeerrrreedd  ttoo  tthhee  CCoouunncciill’’ss  LLiicceennssiinngg  ((AApppplliiccaattiioonnss))  SSuubb--CCoommmmiitttteeee  ffoorr  
ccoonnssiiddeerraattiioonn..      
  

77..1100  IIff  tthhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  iiss  rreeffeerrrreedd  ttoo  tthhee  SSuubb--CCoommmmiitttteeee,,  tthhee  aapppplliiccaanntt  
aanndd  aannyy  oobbjjeeccttoorrss  wwiillll  bbee  iinnvviitteedd  ttoo  aatttteenndd  tthhee  mmeeeettiinngg  ttoo  ppuutt  
ffoorrwwaarrdd  tthheeiirr  ccaassee..    TThhee  aapppplliiccaanntt  mmaayy  bbee  lleeggaallllyy  rreepprreesseenntteedd  oorr  
ssuuppppoorrtteedd  bbyy  aa  ffrriieenndd..    IIff  tthhee  aapppplliiccaanntt  ddooeess  nnoott  aatttteenndd  tthhee  SSuubb--
CCoommmmiitttteeee  mmeeeettiinngg,,  tthhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  ccaann  bbee  ddeetteerrmmiinneedd  iinn  tthheeiirr  
aabbsseennccee..  
  

77..1111  TThhee  aapppplliiccaattiioonn  aanndd  aannyy  oobbjjeeccttiioonnss  ffrroomm  ccoonnssuulltteeeess  wwiillll  bbee  
aasssseesssseedd  bbyy  tthhee  LLiicceennssiinngg  ((AApppplliiccaattiioonnss))  SSuubb--CCoommmmiitttteeee  aaggaaiinnsstt  
tthhee  ccrriitteerriiaa  sseett  oouutt  aabboovvee..    TThhee  CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  aaiimm  ttoo  rreessoollvvee  aannyy  
oobbjjeeccttiioonnss  bbyy  aattttaacchhiinngg  aapppprroopprriiaattee  ccoonnddiittiioonnss  ttoo  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  
CCoonnsseenntt..    IIff  ccoonnddiittiioonnss  ccaannnnoott  oovveerrccoommee  tthhee  oobbjjeeccttiioonnss,,  tthhee  
aapppplliiccaattiioonn  mmaayy  wweellll  bbee  rreeffuusseedd..    TThhee  aapppplliiccaanntt  wwiillll  bbee  nnoottiiffiieedd  iinn  
wwrriittiinngg  wwiitthhiinn  55  wwoorrkkiinngg  ddaayyss  ooff  tthhee  ddeecciissiioonn  ttoo  rreeffuussee  tthhee  
aapppplliiccaattiioonn  oorr  rreevvookkee  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt..    TThheerree  iiss  nnoo  rriigghhtt  
ooff  aappppeeaall  aaggaaiinnsstt  tthhee  CCoouunncciill’’ss  ddeecciissiioonn  ttoo  rreeffuussee  ttoo  ggrraanntt  oorr  rreevvookkee  
aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt..  
  

77..1122  AA  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  wwiillll  bbee  iissssuueedd  ffoorr  aa  mmaaxxiimmuumm  ppeerriioodd  ooff  1122  
mmoonntthhss..    SShhoorrtteerr  tteerrmm  ccoonnsseennttss  mmaayy  bbee  iissssuueedd  oonn  aa  ddaaiillyy  oorr  
mmoonntthhllyy  bbaassiiss..    TThheessee  ppaarrttiiccuullaarr  ccoonnsseennttss  wwiillll  eexxppiirree,,  uunnlleessss  
rreenneewweedd,,  oonn  tthhee  ddaattee  ssppeecciiffiieedd  iinn  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt..  
  

77..1133  OOnnccee  iissssuueedd,,  tthhee  ccoonnsseenntt  hhoollddeerr  ccaannnnoott  sseellll,,  ggiivvee  aawwaayy,,  ssuubb--lleett  oorr  
ppaarrtt  wwiitthh  aallll  oorr  ppaarrtt  ooff  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  oorr  aannyy  rriigghhttss  
ccoonnffeerrrreedd  bbyy  iitt..  

  
77..1144  AA  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  mmaayy  bbee  rreevvookkeedd  bbyy  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  aatt  aannyy  

ttiimmee  oorr  ssuurrrreennddeerreedd  bbyy  tthhee  ccoonnsseenntt  hhoollddeerr  aatt  aannyy  ttiimmee..  
  
  

Page 48



 7 

88..  CCoonnddiittiioonnss  
81. Conditions are attached to Street Trading Consents to ensure public 

safety and the prevention of nuisance and annoyance to local 
residents and businesses.  TThheessee  ccoonnddiittiioonnss  aarree  sseett  oouutt  aatt  
AAppppeennddiixx  ‘‘AA’’..    The Council may also impose other conditions as it 
considers reasonably necessary in any particular case. 

  
99..  DDiissppllaayy  ooff  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  
99..11  AA  ccooppyy  ooff  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  mmuusstt  bbee  pprroommiinneennttllyy  

ddiissppllaayyeedd  aatt  tthhee  ttrraaddiinngg  ssiittee  ttoo  wwhhiicchh  iitt  rreellaatteess  ttoo  ssoo  tthhaatt  iitt  ccaann  bbee  
cclleeaarrllyy  sseeeenn  aanndd  rreeaadd..      

  
99..22  TThhee  ssiizzee  aanndd  llooccaattiioonn  ooff  aa  TTrraaddiinngg  UUnniitt  sshhaallll  bbee  cclleeaarrllyy  sshhoowwnn  aanndd  

iiddeennttiiffiieedd  oonn  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt..  
  
1100..  VVaarriiaattiioonnss  ttoo  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseennttss  
10.1 In certain circumstances, the Council may wish to vary a Street 

Trading Consent it has granted by adding to, altering or removing 
one or more of the conditions attached to it. In those circumstances 
the Council will notify the consent holder of its intention and the 
consent holder will be given the chance to respond to the proposed 
variation of the Street Trading Consent. 

 
10.2 Consent holders may also ask for conditions to be added to, altered 

or removed.  This is done by completing a new application form and 
submitting the appropriate fee.  There is no right of appeal against 
the Council’s decision to refuse to vary a Street Trading Consent. 
 

10.3 If the Council varies a Street Trading Consent, the consent holder 
must surrender the original consent.   

 
11. IInnssuurraannccee  
1111..11  EEvveerryy  ccoonnsseenntt  hhoollddeerr  mmuusstt  pprroodduuccee  tthhee  oorriiggiinnaall  ooff  aa  rreelleevvaanntt  ppoolliiccyy  

ffoorr  TThhiirrdd  PPaarrttyy  LLiiaabbiilliittyy  IInnssuurraannccee  wwiitthh  aa  mmiinniimmuumm  lleevveell  ooff  ccoovveerr  ooff  
££55  mmiilllliioonn  bbeeffoorree  tthhee  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  ccaann  bbee  iissssuueedd,,  oorr  
bbeeffoorree  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  ccaann  bbee  rreenneewweedd..  

  
1122..  TTrraaddee  WWaassttee  
1122..11  IIff  tthhee  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  aaccttiivviittyy  iinnvvoollvveess  oorr  rreeqquuiirreess  tthhee  rreemmoovvaall  ooff  wwaassttee  

ffrroomm  tthhee  ttrraaddiinngg  ssiittee  tthhee  ccoonnsseenntt  hhoollddeerr  mmuusstt  pprroodduuccee  eevviiddeennccee  ooff  aa  
wwaassttee  rreemmoovvaall  sscchheemmee,,  ssuucchh  aass  aa  TTrraaddee  WWaassttee  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  wwiitthh  aa  
lliicceennsseedd  wwaassttee  ccaarrrriieerr,,  bbeeffoorree  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  wwiillll  bbee  
iissssuueedd,,  oorr  bbeeffoorree  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt  wwiillll  bbee  rreenneewweedd..  

 
1133..  EEnnffoorrcceemmeenntt  
1133..11  AAnnyy  ppeerrssoonn  wwhhoo  ccaarrrriieess  oonn  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  iinn  aa  CCoonnsseenntt  SSttrreeeett  

wwiitthhoouutt  tthhee  aapppprroopprriiaattee  ccoonnsseenntt,,  oorr  iinn  aa  PPrroohhiibbiitteedd  SSttrreeeett  aanndd  wwhhoo  iiss  
nnoott  eexxeemmpptt  ccoommmmiittss  aann  ooffffeennccee  aanndd  mmaayy  bbee  pprroosseeccuutteedd  aanndd  lliiaabbllee  
oonn  ccoonnvviiccttiioonn  ttoo  aa  ffiinnee  nnoott  eexxcceeeeddiinngg  ££11,,000000..      

  

Page 49



 8 

1133..22  FFaaiilluurree  ttoo  ccoommppllyy  wwiitthh  tthhee  ccoonnddiittiioonnss  aattttaacchheedd  ttoo  aa  SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  
CCoonnsseenntt  mmaayy  lleeaadd  ttoo  ssuussppeennssiioonn,,  rreevvooccaattiioonn  oorr  nnoonn--rreenneewwaall  ooff  tthhee  
SSttrreeeett  TTrraaddiinngg  CCoonnsseenntt..  

  
1133..33  TThhee  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  aaccttiivviittyy  mmuusstt  aatt  aallll  ttiimmeess  ccoommppllyy  wwiitthh  tthhee  lleeggaall  

rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  rreellaattiinngg  ttoo  tthhaatt  ttyyppee  ooff  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  aaccttiivviittyy  aanndd  aaccttiioonn  
mmaayy  bbee  ttaakkeenn  bbyy  tthhee  aauutthhoorriittyy  rreessppoonnssiibbllee  ffoorr  rreegguullaattiinngg  tthhaatt  
aaccttiivviittyy..    IInn  ppaarrttiiccuullaarr  ttrraaddeerrss  wwhhoossee  ssttrreeeett  ttrraaddiinngg  aaccttiivviittyy  iinncclluuddeess  
tthhee  pprroovviissiioonn  ooff  ffoooodd  iinn  aannyy  ffoorrmm  mmuusstt  ccoommppllyy  wwiitthh  tthhee  pprroovviissiioonnss  ooff  
ccuurrrreenntt  ffoooodd  ssaaffeettyy  aanndd  hheeaalltthh  aanndd  ssaaffeettyy  lleeggiissllaattiioonn..  

  
1133..44  IItt  iiss  rreeccoommmmeennddeedd  tthhaatt  aaddvviiccee  bbee  ssoouugghhtt  oonn  ddeettaaiilleedd  ccoommpplliiaannccee  

wwiitthh  tthhiiss  lleeggiissllaattiioonn  ffrroomm  tthhee  CCoommmmeerrcciiaall  TTeeaamm  aatt  BBrroommssggrroovvee  
DDiissttrriicctt  CCoouunncciill  oonn  0011552277  888811443344  aatt  tthhee  eeaarrlliieesstt  ooppppoorrttuunniittyy..    TThhee  
ttrraaddiinngg  uunniitt  wwiillll  bbee  ssuubbjjeecctt  ttoo  rroouuttiinnee  iinnssppeeccttiioonn  ttoo  aasssseessss  
ccoommpplliiaannccee..  

  
1144..  TTrraaddiinngg  ffrroomm  LLaayy--bbyyss  
1144..11  OOnnllyy  llaayy--bbyyss  wwhhiicchh  aarree  sseeppaarraatteedd  ffrroomm  tthhee  mmaaiinn  ccaarrrriiaaggeewwaayy,,  ffoorr  

eexxaammppllee  bbyy  aa  ggrraasssseedd  oorr  ttaarrmmaacc  vveerrggee,,  wwiillll  nnoorrmmaallllyy  bbee  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  
bbyy  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  aass  bbeeiinngg  ssuuiittaabbllee  ssiitteess..  

  
1155..  EEqquuaalliittyy  &&  DDiivveerrssiittyy  
1155..11  IInn  ddeetteerrmmiinniinngg  aapppplliiccaattiioonnss  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  wwiillll  ggiivvee  ttaakkee  aaccccoouunntt  ooff  iittss  

IInncclluussiivvee  EEqquuaalliittiieess  SScchheemmee..  
  
1166..  RReevviieeww    
1166..11  TThhiiss  ppoolliiccyy  wwiillll  bbee  mmoonniittoorreedd  aanndd  rreevviieewweedd  ffrroomm  ttiimmee  ttoo  ttiimmee..  

Page 50



 9 

AAppppeennddiixx  ‘‘AA’’  
  

Model Conditions 
 
General 
1. You may only carry out street trading activities between the times 

and/or on the days permitted by the Street Trading Consent. 
 
2. You must not trade in any location other than the location permitted 

by the Street Trading Consent. 
 
3. You must at all times whilst trading, display in a prominent position 

the Street Trading Consent issued by the Council. 
 
4. You must not sell any type of food, goods or merchandise other than 

that specified in the Street Trading Consent. 
 
5. Any breach of these conditions may lead to the Street Trading 

Consent being suspended or revoked. 
 
6. The Council may vary the conditions attached to this Street Trading 

Consent at any time. 
 
Prevention of obstruction or danger to highway users 
7. The Trading Unit shall be placed in such a position so that no 

obstruction is caused to nearby shop entrances to the satisfaction of 
the Council’s authorised officer. 

 
8. No vehicle shall be in attendance for the purpose of delivering or 

collecting stalls, goods, etc., between the hours of 10.30 a.m. and 
3.30 p.m. 

 
9. You must ensure that access for emergency vehicles is available at 

all times, and that access for any vehicles is available before 10.30 
a.m. and after 3.30 p.m. 

 
10. You will be responsible for any damage to the highway or otherwise 

resulting from the trading activity. 
 
11. You must not park vehicles or place structures in the vicinity of a 

trading site so as to obstruct street parking facilities available for the 
public. 

 
12. Advertisements or other notices must not be placed outside the street 

trading site without the approval of the Council. 
 
13. You or any other person at the trading site must move the 

vehicle/stall or vacate the site immediately when asked to do so by a 
Police Officer or an authorised officer of the Council. 

Page 51



 10 

Prevention of nuisance or annoyance 
14. You are responsible for the disposal of all refuse and waste from the 

site and, at the end of trading, you must ensure that the site is 
cleansed and left entirely free of obstruction. 

 
15. If you damage or fail to cleanse the trading site remedial action will be 

taken by the Council and the cost charged to you or if appropriate, 
enforcement action may be taken under Environmental Protection Act 
1990 and Clean Neighbourhood and Environmental Act 2005. 

 
16. You must not carry on your trade in such a way so as to cause a 

nuisance and must take all reasonable steps to prevent substantial 
risk of nuisance from noise, odour or fumes to residents, members of 
the public and businesses in the vicinity. 

 
17. You must not use any television, tape recorder or other device for the 

reproduction of sound while trading without the permission of the 
Council. 

 
18. You must not use strobe lights without the permission of the Council. 
 
19. You must confine and sell goods and merchandise within the area of 

the trading site as approved and must not sell or erect additional 
tables, awnings or any other structure. 

 
20. You must ensure that the Trading Unit does not cause interference to 

vehicles servicing nearby shops, houses or other premises. 
 
21. You must ensure that you do not deposit in any street any solid or 

liquid refuse arising from the trading activity and you must not not 
discharge any waste water to the street surface or to the surface 
water drains. 

 
Type of vehicle 
22. Any vehicle used for the pprroovviissiioonn  ooff  ffoooodd  iinn  aannyy  ffoorrmm  mmuusstt  ccoommppllyy  

wwiitthh  tthhee  pprroovviissiioonnss  ooff  ccuurrrreenntt  ffoooodd  ssaaffeettyy  aanndd  hheeaalltthh  aanndd  ssaaffeettyy  
lleeggiissllaattiioonn..    VVeehhiicclleess  mmaayy  bbee  iinnssppeecctteedd  bbyy  aann  aauutthhoorriisseedd  ooffffiicceerr  ooff  tthhee  
CCoouunncciill  aatt  aallll  rreeaassoonnaabbllee  ttiimmeess  ttoo  eennssuurree  ccoommpplliiaannccee  wwiitthh  lleeggiissllaattiioonn.. 

 
Safety Measures 
23. You are responsible for any connection to electrical supply and this 

must be carried out in accordance with the current good electrical 
practice by a competent person.  The Trading Unit must not be 
connected to the Council’s Christmas display circuit. 

 
24. The use and storage of liquid petroleum gas shall comply with the 

requirements of the Fire Officer. 
 
Liability 
25. You are responsible for all and any claims for loss, damage or injury 

howsoever arising from the erection of the Trading Unit  iinncclluuddiinngg  aannyy  
aassssoocciiaatteedd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt, the erection or siting of any van, barrow, 

Page 52



 11 

vehicle or portable stall any and/or the carrying out of street trading 
activities, or any other activities carried on by you at the trading site.  

 
Suitability of Applicant 
26. You must maintain a high degree of personal cleanliness and shall 

wear suitable, clean and where appropriate, protective clothing.   
Where food is to be sold this must include compliance with current 
food safety legislation. 

 
27. You are expected to be in regular attendance at the site as Street 

Trading Consents are granted to individuals. The person who is the 
consent holder is required to be present at the vehicle, barrow, cart, 
van, portable stall or other vehicle or premises from which the street 
trading activity takes place during trading hours. The consent holder 
may nominate an assistant to cover in their absence.  Advice on this 
should be sought from the Licensing Team. 

 
28. You must at all times conduct your business in a clean, honest, polite 

and business-like manner without interfering with the business of 
other traders and consent holders. 

 
29. You must ensure that you have obtained any other approval or 

registration required under any other statutory provisions relevant to 
your trade. 

 
30. You must be 17 years of age or over and shall be responsible at all 

times for the control of the stall.  Any persons assisting on the stall 
must be 17 years of age or over. 

 
31. The Street Trading Consent is personal to the trader named within it 

and shall not be assigned, sub-let or transferred to any other person, 
firm or company. 

 
 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 18th May 2009
	4 Licensing Act 2003 Minor Variations Report
	5 Sub-Committees of the Licensing Committee
	6 Statement of Gambling Policy
	Draft Statement Of Principles

	7 Street Trading Consent
	Draft Street Trading Consent Policy 2009


